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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTNOL3 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED: SEPTEMBER 30, 2010
OR

[ 1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SE{ON 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER: 1-33796

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its Gnart

MARYLAND 26-0630461

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (IRS Employer Identification No

1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK
(Address of principal executive offices)

10036
(Zip Code)

(646) 454-3759
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area fode

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant éF)filed all documents and reports required talbd by Section 13 or 15(d) of t
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdid months (or for such shorter period that thgi®eant was required to file
such reports), and (2) has been subject to stiog fiequirements for the past 90 days:
Yesd NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant masnitted electronically and posted on its corpokélb site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted pasted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T {&e&32.405 of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqrégiod that the registrant was required to sulamit post such files).

Yes¥ NoO
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantl&sg@e accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aocelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See definition of “acceleratiézt f “large accelerated filer,” and “smaller ratiag company” in Rule 12b-2 of
the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filld | Accelerated file &1 | Non-accelerated filelld ~ Smaller reporting compariyl

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Brgfe Act).

YesO NoM

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS:

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiiiedassuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdbiedracticable date:

Class Outstanding at November 1, 20
Common Stock, $.01 par valt 883,168,11:
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

September 30,
2010 December 31,
(unaudited’ 2009 (1)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 11,94¢ $ 24,27¢
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali

Senior 1,065,14! 2,022,401

Subordinatet 1,866,91. 376,45¢

Senior, no-retained 1,967,81. -
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 1,884,19. 1,690,02!
Securitized loans held for investment, net of adaege for loan losses of $6.0 million and $4.6 wili
respectively 389,31! 470,53:
Accrued interest receivab 47,76% 33,12¢
Other asset 36C 1,494
Total asset $ 7,23345. $  4,618,32
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreemel $ 1,568,22. $ 1,716,39
Repurchase agreements with affilia - 259,00
Securitized dek 320,55: 390,35(
Securitized debt, ni-retained 1,955,66! -
Payable for investments purchas 279,64¢ -
Accrued interest payab 11,16¢ 3,23¢
Dividends payabl 158,81 113,78t
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 81C 472
Investment management fees payable to affi 11,41 8,51¢
Interest rate swaps, at fair val 24,82( -
Total liabilities $ 4,331,100 $ 2,491,76
Commitments and Contingencies (Note - -
Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,000000Ghares authorized, 883,169,403 and
670,371,587 shares issued and outstanding, resgk $ 8,82 $ 6,69¢
Additional paic-in-capital 3,056,65! 2,290,61.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 22,44¢ (99,759
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (185,57§) (70,997
Total stockholders' equit $ 290234 $ 2,126,56
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,23345. $  4,618,32

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated finansiatements at December 31, 2C

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

(unaudited
For the Quarters Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 140,40 $ 104,69C $ 402,91: $ 197,77:
Interest expens 10,52% 9,191 25,09¢ 26,552
Interest income, ne¢-retainec 58,09( - 158,78 -
Interest expense, n-retainec 32,23 - 87,48¢ -
Net interest income (expens 155,73: 95,49: 449,10« 171,22.
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (1,319 (6,209 (48,747 (14,789
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other comemetive
income (loss 43€ 4,024 38,43: 6,104
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (87¢) (2,185 (10,31%) (8,680
Other gains (losses):
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (13,587 - (24,820) -
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investmentt 2,032 74,50¢ 2,37¢ 87,45¢
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS (2,519 (61) (3,792 (61)
Total other gains (losse (14,06¢) 74,44 (26,23%) 87,39¢
Net investment income (los 140,78! 167,75! 412,55: 249,93
Other expenses:
Management fe 11,31¢ 8,64¢ 28,69¢ 17,18¢
Provision for loan losse 482 47 2,112 1,41C
General and administrative expen 1,79¢ 1,057 4,367 2,828
Total other expense 13,59¢ 9,75: 35,17 21,42
Income (loss) before income taxe 127,18 158,00: 377,37 228,51¢
Income taxe: 752 - 758 1
Net income (loss $ 126,43 $ 158,00 $ 376,62: $ 228,51!
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute $ 014 $ 024 % 04¢ $ 0.51
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 883,147,72 670,324,86 773,777,43 452,016,98
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 126,43 $ 158,00 $ 376,62: $ 228,51!
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, n 20,40¢ 238,96¢ 110,46! 292,06:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includeatkt income
(loss) for othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 87¢ 2,18¢ 10,31¢ 8,68(
Reclassification adjustment for realized lossesn&ancluded in
net income (loss 48E (74,447 1,41¢ (87,395
Other comprehensive income (lo 21,77: 166,70 122,19¢ 213,34¢
Comprehensive income (los $ 148,20t $ 324,70¢ $ 498,82 $ 441,86

See notes to consolidated financial statem:




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

(unaudited
Accumulated Retained
Other Earnings
Common Stoc Additional Comprehensiv  (Accumulated
Par Value Paic-in Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 1,76C $ 831,96¢ $ (266,669 $ (152,60) $ 414,45!
Net income (loss - - - 228,51! 228,51!
Other comprehensive income (lo - - 213,34¢ - 213,34¢
Net proceeds from common stock offerir 4,63¢ 1,368,25! - - 1,372,89.
Net proceeds from common stock offering:

affiliates 297 89,78: - - 90,07¢
Restricted stock gran 1 321 - - 32z
Common dividends declared, $0.26 per sl - - - (128,587 (128,587
Balance, September 30, 2C $ 6,69 $ 2,290,320 $ (53,327 $ (52,670 $  2,191,02
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 6,69 $ 2,290,61. $ (99,759 $ (70,99) $  2,126,56.
Net income (loss - - - 376,62 376,62
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle - - - (88,187 (88,187
Other comprehensive income (lo - - 122,19¢ - 122,19¢
Net proceeds from direct purchase and divid

reinvestmen - 265 - - 265
Net proceeds from common stock offerir 2,12¢ 765,42" - - 767,55:
Restricted stock gran 1 357 - - 35¢
Common dividends declared, $0.52 per sl - - - (403,029 (403,029
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 8,82: $ 3,056,65 $ 22,44+ $ (185,579 $  2,902,34

See notes to consolidated financial statem:




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousand:

(unaudited
For the Nine For the Nine
Months Endec  Months Ende
September 30, September 30,
2010 2009
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $ 376,62: $ 228,51!
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Accretion of investment discour (187,869 (38,539
Unrealized losses (gains) on interest rate s\ 24,82( -
Realized losses (gains) on sales of investn (2,379 (87,45¢)
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS 3,792 61
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 10,31¢ 8,68(
Provision for loan losse 2,112 1,41(C
Restricted stock gran 35¢ 322
Changes in operating asse
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei (14,639 (19,499
Decrease (increase) in other as: 1,13¢ 927
Changes in operating liabilitie
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and ddbdities 33¢ 36E
Increase (decrease) in investment management égeble to affiliate 2,892 6,77¢
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa) 7,92¢ 734
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 225,43. $ 102,30!
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
MortgageBacked Securities portfolic
Purchase $ (2,299,93) $ (4,505,42)
Sales 298,28: 1,627,99
Principal payment 562,31 321,09!
Mortgage-Backed Securities portfolio, n-retained:
Principal payment 457,98 -
Securitized loans
Principal payment 78,32¢ 82,09(
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ (903,030 $ (2,474,24)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 12,780,97 $ 52,976,28
Payments on repurchase agreem (13,188,15) (51,941,08)
Net proceeds from common stock offerit 767,55: 1,372,89.
Net proceeds from common stock offerings to atfl& - 90,07¢
Payments on securitized debt borrowi (70,689 (77,379
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,-retainec 1,127,87. -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,-retainec (394,55) -
Net proceeds from direct purchase and dividendsesitmen 263 -
Common dividends pai (358,00 (55,317
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ 665,26 $  2,365,48:
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ (12,330 $ (6,457)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 24,27¢ 27,48(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 11,94¢ $ 21,02¢




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(dollars in thousand:

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest paic 104,65¢ 25,95¢

Taxes paic 753 -
Non-cash investing activities:

Payable for investments purcha: 279,64¢ 73,46(

Net change in unrealized gain on avail-for sale securitie 122,19¢ 213,34¢
Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet p 158,81 80,31

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010
(Unaudited)

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (“Companwas organized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The fgizoyym commenced operations
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial jpubffering. The Company has elected to be taa®d real estate investment tt
(“REIT"), under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 amended. As long as the Company qualifiesREsla, the Company will generally
not be subject to U.S. federal or state corpomated on its income to the extent that the Compastyilalites at least 90% of its taxable net
income to its stockholders. In July 2008, the Camypformed Chimera Securities Holdings, LLC, a ifrolwned subsidiary. In June 2009,
the Company formed Chimera Asset Holding LLC andéh@hna Holding LLC, both wholly-owned subsidiaries. January 2010, the
Company formed Chimera Special Holding LLC, whislaiwholly-owned subsidiary of Chimera Asset Haddlth C. In July 2010, the
Company formed CIM Trading Company LLC, a wholly+wed subsidiary. Chimera Securities Holdings, LOGimera Asset Holding LLC,
Chimera Holding LLC, and Chimera Special HoldingQ are qualified REIT subsidiaries. CIM Trading Guany LLC is a taxable REIT
subsidiary. Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Aryiabwns approximately 5.1% of the Company’s comnsbares. The Company is
managed by Fixed Income Discount Advisory CompdRIDAC”), an investment advisor registered with tBecurities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”). FIDAC is a wholly-owned sulisigy of Annaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of the Company and its wholly-owned subsi€ls, Chimera Securities
Holdings, LLC, Chimera Holding LLC, CIM Trading Cgrany LLC and Chimera Asset Holding LLC and its wiralwned subsidiary,
Chimera Special Holding LLC. All intercompany batas and transactions have been eliminated.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handaasiddeposited overnight in money market funds.

(c) Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Baekl Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baskedrities (“‘RMBS”) representing interests in ohtigns backed by pools of
mortgage loans. The Company classifies its investmecurities as either “trading,” “available-fale,” or “held-to-maturity.” In addition,
the Company delineates between (1) Agency, (2)Agency, and (3) non-Agency, non-retained securitilse Agency RMBS are mortgage
pass-through certificates, collateralized mortgalgigations (“CMOs”), and other mortgage-backedusiies representing interests in or
obligations backed by pools of mortgage loans dsueguaranteed as to principal and/or interesayagent by agencies of the U.S.
Government or federally chartered corporations sictovernment National Mortgage Association (“@riviae”), the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation (“Freddie Mac”) or the FedeMational Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”). Than-Agency RMBS portfolio is
not issued or guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Masinnie Mae and is therefore subject to cradit. Non-Agency, non-retained
securities are further detailed in Note 8 to thasgsolidated financial statements.

The Company holds its RMBS as available-for-saeords investments at estimated fair value as itbestin Note 5 of these
consolidated financial statements, and includesalized gains and losses in other comprehensiwgriadloss) in the consolidated statem
of operations and comprehensive income (loss)mRnme to time, as part of the overall manageméitsgortfolio, the Company may sell
any of its RMBS investments and recognize a redlgan or loss as a component of earnings in theaalated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss) utilizing the speddentification method.




Interest income on RMBS is computed on the remgipiincipal balance of the investment securityerfium or discount
amortization/accretion on Agency RMBS is recogniaedr the life of the investment using the effegtinterest method Premium or
discount amortization/accretion on non-Agency RM88&cognized in accordance with Accounting Staaisl&odification (“ASC”) 325,
Investment-Other . For non-Agency RMBS, the Company estimatesatithe of purchase expected future cash flows,gyneent speeds,
credit losses, loss severity, and loss timing basetthe Company’s observation of available marlaga dits experience, and the collective
judgment of its management team to determine tleetgdfe interest rate on the RMBS. Not less thaarterly, the Company reevaluates,
if necessary, makes adjustments to its analydigingj internal models, external market researath swurces in conjunction with its view on
performance in the non-Agency RMBS sector. Chamgdése Company’s assumptions subsequent to ttehase date may increase or
decrease the amortization/accretion of premiungismounts which affects interest income. Changessumptions that decrease expected
future cash flows may result in other-than-temppmarpairment (“OTTI").

The Company evaluates each investment in its RM@8qbio for OTTI quarterly or more often if markebnditions warrant. The
Company determines if it (1) has the intent to gedlsecurity, (2) is more likely than not thawitl be required to sell the securities before
recovery, or (3) does not expect to recover thieeamortized cost basis of the security. Furtties,security is analyzed for credit loss by
comparing the difference between the present wafleash flows expected to be collected and the &readr cost basis. The credit loss, if any,
will then be recognized in the consolidated statemief operations, while the balance of impairnrefated to other factors will be recogni:
in other comprehensive income (loss).

(d) Securitized Loans Held for Investment
The Company’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratadoaviortgage loans are
designated as held for investment, recorded or tdatle, and are carried at their principal balantstanding, plus any premiums or
discounts, less allowances for loan losses. Isténeome on loans held for investment is recoghizeer the life of the investment using the
effective interest method. Income recognitionuspended for loans when, in the opinion of managenaefull recovery of income and
principal becomes doubtful. Income recognitioneisumed when the loan becomes contractually cuarghperformance is demonstrated to
be resumed. The Company estimates fair valueakrgized loans as described in Note 5 of thesealiatated financial statements.

(e) Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lossek at a level that management believes is atdelo@sed on an evaluation of
known and inherent risks related to the Compargés Iportfolio. The estimate is based on a vanéfactors including current economic
conditions, industry loss experience, the loanioatpr’'s loss experience, credit quality trendanlgortfolio composition, delinquency trends,
national and local economic trends, national unegrpkent data, changes in housing appreciation aredegion and whether specific
geographic areas where the Company has significantconcentrations are experiencing adverse ecieremnditions and events such as
natural disasters that may affect the local econonproperty values. Upon purchase of a pool ofispghe Company obtains written
representations and warranties from the selletgtiegaCompany could be reimbursed for the valugaefloan if the loan fails to meet the
agreed upon origination standards. While the Combeas little history of its own to establish lda@nds, delinquency trends of the
originators and the current market conditions aidétermining the allowance for loan losses. Thm@any also performs due diligence
procedures on a sample of loans that met its @&itkiring the purchase process. The Company leasett an unallocated provision for
probable loan losses estimated as a percentage ofinaining unpaid principal balance on the lodflanagement’s estimate is based on
historical experience of similarly underwritten fgo

When the Company determines it is probable thatiBpeontractually due amounts are uncollectilthes amount is considered
impaired. Where impairment is indicated, a vahmtivrite-off is measured based upon the excedseofecorded investment over the net fair
value of the collateral, reduced by selling cogtay deficiency between the carrying amount of ased and the net sales price of repossesse
collateral is charged to the allowance for loarséss

(f) Repurchase Agreements

The Company may finance the acquisition of its gtrreent securities through the use of repurchasseagnts. Repurchase
agreements are treated as collateralized finaricamgactions and are carried at their contractualats, including accrued interest, as
specified in the respective agreements.

(9) Securitized Debt and Securitized Debt, Non-Reiaed

The Company has issued securitized debt to finascesidential mortgage loan portfolio and haseeuritized RMBS to finance a
portion of its RMBS portfolio. Certain transactsimvolving residential mortgage loans are accalifite as financings, and are recorded as
an asset called “Securitized loans held for investthand the corresponding debt as “Securitized’delthe consolidated statements of
financial condition. These securitizations ardatetalized by residential adjustable or fixed mratertgage loans that have been placed in a
trust and pay interest and principal payments éodéébt holders of that securitization. Re-seaaiibn transactions classified as “Securitized
debt, non-retained” reflect the transfer to a tnfdixed or adjustable rate RMBS which are classdifas “Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed
Securities Senior, non-retained” that pay inteaest principal payments to the debt holders of teegecuritization. Re-securitization
transactions completed by the Company are accodioted financings pursuant to the adoption of A80. The holders of securitized debt
and securitized debt, non-retained have no recaarf®e Company. The Company estimates fair vafisecuritized debt and securitized
debt, non-retained as described in Note 5 to thessolidated financial statements.




(h) Fair Value Disclosure
A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to fair value its financial instrurteeis included in Note 5 to
these consolidated financial statements.

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Adivity

The Company’s policies permit it to enter into gative contracts, including interest rate swapsiatetest rate caps, as a means of
mitigating its interest rate risk. The Company intte to use interest rate derivative instrumentsitmate interest rate risk rather than to
enhance returns. If the Company’s hedging aatisitlo not achieve its desired results, the Compaeyorted earnings may be adversely
affected. Interest rate swaps are recorded ag @ifisets or liabilities in the consolidated statenoé financial condition, and measured at fair
value with realized and unrealized gains and losss@gnized in earnings. The Company estimatev&hie of interest rate swaps as
described in Note 5 of these consolidated finarstatements.

(j) Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactiong/hich it sells financial assets, such as RMBSitgage loans and other
assets. Gains and losses on sales of assetsnapeiteal on the specific identification method whgréte Company records a gain or loss on
the difference between the carrying value of treetaand the proceeds from the sale. In addittenCompany from time to time securitize:
re-securitizes assets and sells tranches in thiy meeuritized assets. These transactions magdweded as either a sale and the assets
contributed to the securitization are removed ftbmconsolidated statements of financial conditind a gain or loss is recognized, or as a
financing whereby the assets contributed to thariteration are not derecognized but rather thiilitées issued by the securitization are
recorded to reflect the term financing of the assét these securitizations and re-securitizatittes Company may retain senior or
subordinated interests in the securitized andAseriritized assets.

(k) Income Taxes

The Company qualifies to be taxed as a REIT, aackfore it generally will not be subject to corpgerdederal, or state income tay
the extent that qualifying distributions are manlstockholders and the REIT requirements, includigain asset, income, distribution and
stock ownership tests are met. If the Compangdaib qualify as a REIT and did not qualify forteém statutory relief provisions, the
Company would be subject to federal, state and lncame taxes and may be precluded from qualifgiag REIT for the subsequent four
taxable years following the year in which the RiTalification was lost. The Company and its sulasjdCIM Trading Company LLC have
made joint elections to treat the subsidiary axalile REIT subsidiary. As such, CIM Trading CompaLC is taxable as a domestic C
corporation and subject to federal, state, and incame taxes based upon its taxable income.

(I) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadévltling net income for the period by the weighteverage shares of its
common stock outstanding for that period. Dilutedincome per share takes into account the effeditutive instruments, such as stock
options, but uses the average share price forahedgin determining the number of incremental ekdhat are to be added to the weighted
average number of shares outstanding. The Contpaohyio potentially dilutive securities outstandihging the periods presented.

(m) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and itdiats in accordance with
ASC 505-50Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees . Accounting principles generally accepted in theted States of America
(“GAAP”) requires the Company to measure the faiue of the equity instrument using the stock ri@ed other measurement assumptions
as of the earlier of either the date at which dgoerance commitment by the counterparty is readretie date at which the counterparty’s
performance is complete. Compensation expenstedda the grants of stock and stock options isgaized over the vesting period of such
grants based on the fair value of the stock orvéisting date.




(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial steets in conformity with GAAP requires managemenngke estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities and disclosure of contingersieds and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsveinges and expenses during the reporting perioglmidst significant estimates are related
to the following: all investment securities clagsif as available-for-sale and interest rate swapsegorted at their estimated fair value; all
investment securities are amortized/accreted baisaiklds that incorporate management’s assumpésris the expected performance of the
investment over time; and loan loss provisionsegtfinanagement estimates with regard to expecssddoof the securitized loan
portfolio. Actual results could differ from thosstimates.

(o) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Assets

Receivables (ASC 310)

In April 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standddgslate (“ASU”) 2010-18, which addresses the eftéct loan modification
when a loan is part of a pool accounted for asglsiasset. This update clarifies the treatmenttodubled debt restructuring. This guidance
allows acquired assets, which have evidence oftaleterioration upon acquisition and common riBRracteristics, to be accounted for in
aggregate as a pool. Upon establishment of the fheopool becomes the unit of accounting. Anycphase discount is not allocated to
individual loans, thus all of the loans in the paotrete at a single pool rate based on cash ftojegiions for the pool. Likewise, impairme
analysis is performed on the pool as a whole, ndhdividual loans. Modifications to loans, evéthiose modifications are considered
troubled debt restructuring, do not result in anlbaing removed from the pool. This treatmenbissistent with the current accounting
practices of the Company and therefore has no rah&ffect on the Company’s consolidated finanstaktements.

In July 2010, the FASB released ASU 2010-20, whidtresses disclosures about the credit qualitinah€ing receivables and the
allowance for credit losses. The purpose of tpiate is to provide greater transparency regartiegllowance for credit losses and the
credit quality of financing receivables as weltasssist in the assessment of credit risk expesamd evaluation of the adequacy of
allowances for credit losses. Additional disclesumust be provided on a disaggregated basis.ufitiete defines two levels of
disaggregation — portfolio segment and class @frfoing receivable. Additionally, the update regsiidisclosure of credit quality indicators,
past due information and modifications of financiegeivables. The update is not applicable tagage banking activities (loans originated
or purchased for resale to investors); derivatingtruments such as repurchase agreements; dehbtisscia transferors interest in
securitization transactions accounted for as salder ASC 860; and purchased beneficial interestecuritized financial assets. This update
is effective for the Company for interim or annpatiods ending on or after December 15, 2010.histttme, the Company is evaluating the
effect of this update on future financial reporting

Broad Transactions

Consolidation (ASC 810)

Effective January 1, 2010, the consolidation stastsldave been amended by ASU 2009-17. This ameantdipdates the existing
standard and eliminates the exemption from conattid of a Qualified Special Purpose Entity (“QSPEThe update requires an enterprise
to perform an analysis to determine whether therprise’s variable interest or interests givegbatrolling financial interest in a variable
interest entity (“VIE"). The analysis identifiesalprimary beneficiary of a VIE as the enterprisa tias both: a) the power to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the eyisteconomic performance and b) the obligationlisoab losses of the entity or the right to
receive benefits from the entity which could potaht be significant to the VIE. The update regsienhanced disclosures to provide use
financial statements with more transparent inforomaabout an enterprises involvement in a VIE. Toenpany determined it is the primary
beneficiary on a number of VIEs formed through eetsitizations. The Company was required to caodatd RMBS re-securitization
transactions previously recorded during the yededrDecember 31, 2009 as sales for GAAP beginnitigthe effective date of this
ASU. Consolidation of these transactions altehedgresentation of the consolidated financial statgs by increasing its non-Agency
portfolio and increasing the value of non-recodiagilities for which it has no continuing obligati. The consolidation has reversed
previously recorded GAAP gains on sales of assd$ed to the re-securitizations undertaken in 200% reversal of this gain will be
accreted over the remaining life of the re-seagiiassets. The adoption of this guidance haftedsn material changes to the format and
content of the Company’s consolidated financiakstents, as well as enhanced disclosures. Refke tdiscussion in Note 8.




Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)

The FASB issued ASU 2010-8 in February 2010. ABW®@8 provided technical corrections to ASC 81hisTupdate provides a
four step analysis to determine whether call orguiions that can accelerate the settlement ofidettuments should be considered clearly
and closely related to the debt host contracit isfdetermined that such option is closely raldtethe host contract, bifurcation of the host
contract from the derivative instrument is not reseey. If an existing hybrid instrument requirdsiication under this update, a one-time
election can be made to utilize the Fair Value @pfor the entire contract. This update was ¢iffedor the Company January 1, 2010 and
continues to have no effect on the consolidateahiiial statements.

ASU 2010-11 was issued in March 2010 and definscbpe exception for embedded derivative featutéshnwinvolve only the
transfer of credit risk that is only in the formsfbordination of one financial instrument to amothSuch instruments would not be subject to
bifurcation under ASC 815. This guidance is effexfor the first quarter beginning after June 2610, however early adoption for the first
fiscal quarter is allowed. The Company electedady adopt for the first quarter of 2010. Adoptitas had no effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In January 2010, FASB issued ASU 20®which increases disclosures regarding the flirevof assets. The key provisions of
guidance include the requirement to disclose séglgirine amounts of significant transfers in antlafLevel 1 and Level 2 including a
description of the reason for the transfers. Pngsly this was only required of transfers betweewdl 2 and Level 3 assets. Further,
reporting entities are required to provide fairneameasurement disclosures for each class of aswigbilities; a class is potentially a sul
of the assets or liabilities within a line itemtire statement of financial position. Additionaltiisclosures about the valuation techniques and
inputs used to measure fair value for both recgrand nonrecurring fair value measurements ardnestjfor either Level 2 or Level 3
assets. This portion of the guidance is effediiwvehe Company beginning January 1, 2010. Theandd also requires that the disclosure on
any Level 3 assets presents separately informabtont purchases, sales, issuances and settlentertther words, Level 3 assets are
presented on a gross basis rather than as oneméen. However, this last portion of the guidaisceot effective for the Company until
January 1, 2011. Adoption of this guidance resnltacreased footnote disclosure in the Compaagtssolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events (ASC 855)

In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-09 aana@ndment to ASC 855. This update eliminateddhairement to provide a
specific date through which subsequent events exmbuated. The purpose of this update was toiatlepotential conflicts between ASC
855 and SEC reporting requirements. The updatesffastive upon issuance. The Company evaluatbgesjuent events through date of
issuance of this Quarterly Report on Form 10Q.

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

On June 12, 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-16n@mndment update to the accounting standards gowgtiné transfer and
servicing of financial assets. This amendment temtithe existing standard and eliminated the canafep QSPE, clarified the surrendering
of control to effect sale treatment and modifieel financial components approach — limiting theuinstances in which a financial asset or
portion thereof should be derecognized when thesfesior maintains continuing involvement. It defiinthe term “Participating
Interest”. Under this standard update, the transferor musigréze and initially measure at fair value all assibtained and liabilities incurr
as a result of a transfer, including any retaineddficial interest. Additionally, the amendmentuiegd enhanced disclosures regarding the
transferors risk associated with continuing invahest in any transferred assets. The amendmengffextive beginning January 1,

2010. The Company has determined the amendmdrd hraterial impact on the consolidated finandtiesnents. See discussion under
Consolidation (ASC 810) above.
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3. Mortgage-Backed Securities

The following tables present the principal valueamnortized premium, unamortized discount, grossalired gain, gross unrealized
loss, and fair value of the Company’s availabledale RMBS portfolio as of September 30, 2010 aaddmber 31, 2009, at fair value by
asset class. The RMBS portfolio is composed ofnedgeand non-Agency RMBS collateralized by residdntiortgage loans. The Agency
RMBS are mortgage pass-through certificates, CMidd,other mortgage-backed securities representtagests in or obligations backed by
pools of mortgage loans issued or guaranteed byi€&hae, Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae. The non-Agen®BS portfolio is not issued or
guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Ml is therefore subject to credit risk. The @any classifies its non-Agency RMBS
into senior, subordinated, and senior, non-retainegtests. Senior interests in non-Agency RMBSansidered to be entitled to the first
principal repayments in their pro-rata ownershigiiests. At September 30, 2010 the non-Agency Rig@&8olio included $4.8 billion in
notional Interest Only (“10”) senior securities a®805.0 million in notional 10 subordinated sedest At December 31, 2009 the non-
Agency RMBS portfolio includes $379.0 million intimnal 10 subordinated securities. Securities fified as senior, non-retained have been
consolidated pursuant to the adoption of ASC 838e Note 8 of these consolidated financial statésrfena detailed discussion.

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Unamortized Unamortized Unrealized Unrealized
Principal Valut Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 848,33: $ 338,34: $ (43,589 $ 29517 $ (107,466 $  1,065,14
Subordinater 4,441 ,90! 58,75( (2,692,661 239,44 (180,529 1,866,91.
Senior, no-retained 2,013,42. 86,51+ (130,149 78,18¢ (80,165 1,967,81.
Agency RMBS 1,782,06! 58,67( - 44,50¢ (1,050 1,884,19.
Total $ 9,08573 $ 542,27t $ (2,866,39) $ 391,65( $ (369,200 $  6,784,06:
December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross
Unamortized Unamortized Unrealized Unrealized
Principal Value Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 2,757,21 $ 153 $ (628,209 $ 83,94¢ $ (192,079 $ 2,022,401
Subordinatet 1,616,03 10,34¢ (1,239,76) 65,99¢ (76,145 376,45¢
Agency RMBS 1,616,45! 55,08 (29 20,761 (2,240 1,690,02!
Total $ 598969 $ 66,96 $ (1,868,00) $ 170,70¢ $ (270,469 $  4,088,89

The following tables present the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the Company’s RMBlength of time that such
securities have been in a continuous unrealizesigosition at September 30, 2010 and December(BB, 2The securities in an unrealized
loss position have been evaluated by the Compan®Td| as discussed in the paragraphs followingéhables. Twenty-three securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss poditiogreater than twelve months, of which twenty-tsazurities are subordinated interests
held by the Company that, although performingrir vith the Company’s expectations, are in unredlinss position due to significant
market value declines consistent with similar asketses as a result of the credit crisis.
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September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position Fc

Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Fai Unrealized Estimated Fai Unrealized Estimated Fai Unrealized

RMBS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 552,227 % (107,34) $ 181 $ (119) $ 552,40¢ $ (107,46¢)

Subordinatec 871,96: (150,259 39,271 (30,26¢) 911,23¢ (180,525

Senior, no-retained 773,83 (80,165 - - 773,83 (80,165
Agency 1,49t (1,050 - - 1,49t (1,050
Total $ 2,199,52. % (338,82) $ 39,45¢ $ (30,389 $ 2,238,97" $ (369,200

December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position Fc
Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Fai Unrealized Estimated Fai Unrealized Estimated Fai Unrealized

RMBS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 539,57¢ $ (38,466 $ 489,67( $ (153,61) $ 1,029.24¢ $ (192,079

Subordinatec 179,22¢ (72,439 5,86% (3,707 185,08t (76,145

Senior, no-retained - - - - - -
Agency 682,68: (2,240 - - 682,68: (2,240
Total $ 1,401,480 $ (113,149 $ 49553; $ (157,320 $ 1,897,01i $ (270,464

The Company recorded an $878 thousand other-thmapet@ry credit impairment during the quarter en8egdtember 30, 2010 on
investments where the expected future cash floveed&in non-Agency RMBS were less than their aimedtcost basis. The Company
evaluates each investment in its RMBS portfolio@arT| quarterly or more often if market conditionarrant. The amortized cost of each
investment in an unrealized loss position is coragdo the present value of expected future castsflaf the position. In estimating future
cash flows, the Company evaluated the non-AgencBRBNbr OTTI by considering delinquencies, cred#ides, loss severities, prepayment
speeds, geographic data, borrower characterii@s,to value ratios, seasoning and credit suppanjunction with broader
macroeconomic expectations such as home price dapios, expectations of future delinquencies ass Iseverities and the ability of the
borrower to refinance or modify their loans. Ifeafdetermining the expected future cash flowshefgosition, the amortized cost of the
security is less than the present value of its ebgoefuture cash flows, an other-than-temporarditimpairment has occurred. If the
Company does not intend to sell and is not momylikhan not required to sell the debt securitpipto its anticipated recovery, the credit
loss, if any, is recognized in the statement ofrapens, while the balance of impairment relatedttwer factors is recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss). If the Company irgendsell the debt security, or will be more likéhyan not required to sell the security
before its anticipated recovery, the full unrealiess associated with the OTTI is recognized engtatement of operations. The
determination cannot be overcome by managemenirjadgof the probability of collecting all cash flsygreviously projected. A summary
of the OTTI included in earnings for the quartend aine months ended September 30, 2010 and Sept&®b2009 is presented below.
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For the Quarter Ende
September 30, 20 September 30, 20
(dollars in thousand:

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 19,43 % 6,49t
Additions:

Other-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni - 1,932

Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnen securities with previously

recognized oth«-thar-temporary impairment 87¢ 253
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 20,31, $ 8,68(

For the Quarter Ende
September 30, 20 September 30, 20!
(dollars in thousand:

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 9,99 $ S
Additions:

Otherthar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 8,80z 8,42

Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnen securities with previously

recognized oth«-thar-temporary impairment 1,51: 253
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 20,31, $ 8,68(

The impairment recorded during the quarter endgule®sber 30, 2010 was related to four securitidse impaired investments wi
subordinated interests in non-Agency RMBS. Asebt8mber 30, 2010, the impaired securities had tatime losses up to 6%, threeentt
prepayments speeds between 11 and 15 ConstantyRrepaRate (“CPR”)60+ day delinquencies between 9% and 12% of thélpdance
and weighted average FICO scores on the pools beat&20 and 745.

The Company’s investment guidelines place no @giris on the credit rating of the assets the Camjmable to hold in its
portfolio. The portfolio is most heavily weightéal contain RMBS with credit risk. The Company cbe® assets for the portfolio after
carefully evaluating each investment’s risk profile

September 30, 20 December 31, 20(
AAA 29.2% 39.41%
AA 0.71% 0.75%
A 1.7%% 0.55%
BBB 0.8%% 1.07%
BB 0.02% 1.71%
B 0.11% 2.1%
Below B or not ratel 67.21% 54.27%
Total 100.0(% 100.00%

The table above reflects the credit rating of tlhen@any’s consolidated RMBS portfolio. At Septem®ey 2010, approximately
21% of the AAA, AA, and A securities balance refttin the table above include senior, non-retained-Agency RMBS.

The AAA rated assets in the RMBS portfolio are prathantly Agency RMBS and senior non-retained nae#cy RMBS. As the
Company securitizes or re-securitizes assetspies the Below B or not rated percentages in ¢inéghio to increase as the Company
typically retains the subordinated tranches ofdéhgpes of transactions.

Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securitiesganeerally shorter than stated contractual magsritiActual maturities of the
Company’s RMBS are affected by the contractuaklivEthe underlying mortgages, periodic paymentsrioicipal and prepayments of
principal. The following tables summarize the Camys RMBS at September 30, 2010 and December(®19 according to their estimated
weighted-average life classifications. The weidktwerage lives of the mortgage-backed securiti€&eptember 30, 2010 and December 31,
2009 in the tables below are based on consensssatiprepayment speeds. The prepayment moddtleosisurrent yield, forward yield,
steepness of the curve, current mortgage ratesgay® rates of the outstanding loan, loan age,imargl volatility.
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September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than
one year and
Less than one less than five Greater than

year years five years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 25,17C $ 711,00 $ 328,97: $ 1,065,14!
Subordinatet 6,98¢ 181,68¢ 1,678,23! 1,866,91.
Senior, no-retained 188,42¢ 1,466,46! 312,92 1,967,81.
Agency RMBS 1,884,109: 1,884,109:

Total fair value $ 220,58t $ 4,243,34, $ 2,320,13. % 6,784,06:
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 26,73 $ 707,02¢ $ 409,33: $ 1,143,009

Subordinatec 10,34: 215,30( 1,582,35! 1,807,99.

Senior, no-retained 243,65¢ 1,437,90! 288,22 1,969,79

Agency RMBS - 1,840,73! - 1,840,73!

Total amortized cos $ 280,73. $ 4,200,97. $ 2,27991.  $ 6,761,61

December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than
one year and
Less than on¢  less than five Greater than

year years five years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 20,53: % 1,520,80' $ 481,06: $ 2,022,401
Subordinatec 137 204,48 171,84 376,45¢
Agency RMBS - 1,690,02! - 1,690,02!
Total fair value $ 20,67C $ 341531 $ 652,90 $ 4,088,89.
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 20,54¢ % 1,631,46. $ 478,53( % 2,130,54i
Subordinatet 76 244,93 141,59 386,60
Agency RMBS - 1,671,50; - 1,671,50;
Total amortized cos $ 20,62 $ 3,547,900 $ 620,12: $ 4,188,64!

The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to cratik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit rightigh its asset selection
process. The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primadbllateralized by what the Company classifiea\isA first lien mortgages. The
Company categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardtdsshether the loans were originally described @#ie” if the behavior of the collateral
when the Company purchased the security more tjpiasembles Alt-A. The Company defines Alt-A lkedéral characteristics to be when
the 60+ day delinquency bucket of the pool is gnetitan 5% and weighted average FICO scores aategithan 650 at origination. At
September 30, 2010, 99% of the non-Agency RMBSA#rA collateral. At December 31, 2009, 78% of then-Agency RMBS were Alt-A
collateral. The investment securities containethis portion of the portfolio have the followingltateral characteristics at September 30,
2010 and December 31, 2009.
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September 30, 20 December 31, 20(

Number of securities in portfoli 482 20¢
Weighted average maturity (yea 27.€ 28.t
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 72.%% 73.8%
Weighted average FIC 715.¢ 715.7
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 421.C $ 415.¢
Weighted average percentage owner occu 83.(% 82.&%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 60.4% 59.%%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 16.2% 12.2%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 57.2% CA 44.8%
FL 13.% FL 17.%
NY 7.C% NY 7.5%
NJ 3.7% MD 4.S%
VA 3.4% NJ 4.4%

The information presented in the table above inesugkenior, non-retained, non-Agency RMBS consdidiaursuant to the adoption
of ASC 810 on January 1, 2010 by the Company.

The table below presents origination year for thenany’s portfolio of non-Agency RMBS at Septem®@y 2010 and December
31, 20009.

Origination Year as a Percentage of September 3 December 3:

QOutstanding Principal Balani 201( 200¢
2004 0.2% 0.C%
2005 10.5% 8.7%
2006 24.5% 36.7%
2007 63.2% 50.8%
2008 1.2% 3.8%
2009 0.2% 0.C%

Total 100.(% 100.(%

The assets classified as non-Agency MBS underubhbeading “Senior, non-retained” in the Companyssolidated financial
statements were financed by selling AAA-rated baodbird parties. The liability related to thedincing is reflected in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements as “Securitizgat, chon-retained.'Secured borrowings under GAAP do not reflect a gailoss on the sa
of the bonds over their cost basis but rather dreodr accrete the gains or losses over the lith@bonds. The Company has no continuing
involvement with the transferred assets excepit$éaight to receive principal and interest casiwf from the bonds it has retained.

During the quarters ended September 30, 2010 andrblger 31, 2009, the Company recorded no non-rgedumancing with third
party investors.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2010, tinep@oy sold RMBS with a carrying value of $206.0liaril for realized gains of
$2.0 million. During the quarter ended Septemlier2®09, the Company sold RMBS with a carrying gadfi$32.1 million for realized gair
of approximately $2.4 million.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company’s séized residential mortgage loans classified as fe#lthvestment at September
30, 2010 and December 31, 2009. At SeptemberM,Aapproximately 56% of the Company’s securitiimechs are adjustable rate
mortgage loans and 44% are fixed rate mortgagesloAtfi of the adjustable rate loans held for inmesnt are hybrid adjustable rate
mortgages (“ARMSs").Hybrid ARMs are mortgages that have interest ritasare fixed for an initial period (typically #®, five, seven or te
years) and thereafter reset at regular intervddgestito interest rate caps. The periodic capliomyarid ARMs in the securitized loz
portfolio range from 0.00% to 3.00% for the quastended September 30, 2010 and December 31, 28Q&atively. The securitized loans
held for investment are carried at their principalance outstanding, plus premiums or discourds,d® allowance for loan losses.
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September 30, 20 December 31, 20(

Securitized loans, at principal balar $ 395,35t $ 475,08:
Less: allowance for loan loss 6,041 4,551
Securitized loans held for investme $ 389,31' $ 470,53:

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizedgmyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 55% were originated during
2008 and 43% were originated during 2007. A sumyroékey characteristics of these loans follows.

September 30, 20 December 31, 20(
Number of loan: 564 681
Weighted average maturity (yea 26.€ 27.2
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 74.(% 73.(%
Weighted average FIC 75€ 75€
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 677.7 $ 690.1
Weighted average percentage owner occu 90.8% 90.9%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 58.8% 60.(%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 33.(% CA 33.8%
FL 6.€% FL 6.4%
IL 6.C% NJ 6.3%
NJ 5.6% IL 6.C%
VA 4.%% VA 4.8%

The following table summarizes the changes in tlssvance for loan losses for the securitized magigkan portfolio during the
quarters ended September 30, 2010 and Decemb2039,,

September 30, 20 December 31, 200

Balance, beginning of peric $ 5,56¢ $ 1,621
Provision for loan losse 482 3,101
Charge-offs (10) (177
Balance, end of peric $ 6,041 $ 4,551

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguads of its allowance for loan losses. The Corgjsaallowance for loan losses
at September 30, 2010 was $6.0 million, represgritsb basis points of the principal balance ofGoenpany’s securitized mortgage loan
portfolio. The Company’s allowance for loan losae®ecember 31, 2009 was $4.6 million, represgrihbasis points of the principal
balance of the Company’s securitized loan portfokd September 30, 2010, 2.63% of the securitleads held for investment were greater
than 60 days delinquent and 1.27% were in some sthigankruptcy, foreclosure, or were real estateenl. At December 31, 2009, 1.82%
the securitized loans held for investment weretgraaan 60 days delinquent and 0.89% were in sstage of bankruptcy, foreclosure, or |

estate owned.
5. Fair Value Measurements

GAAP defines fair value, establishes a frameworknfieasuring fair value, establishes a three-leaklation hierarchy for disclosure
of fair value measurement and enhances disclosgrérements for fair value measurements. The tialuaierarchy is based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an ags8ability as of the measurement date. ThedHewsels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imigliquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.
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The following discussion describes the methodokgidized by the Company to fair value its finaalégnstruments by instrument
class.

Short-term I nstruments
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, attsopayable, and accrued inte
payable generally approximates estimated fair vdlieto the short term nature of these financstriiments.

Non-Agency and Agency RMBS

The Company determines the fair value of its inwestt securities utilizing a pricing model that inmorates such factors as coupon,
prepayment speeds, weighted average life, collateraposition, borrower characteristics, expecteadrest rates, life caps, periodic caps,
reset dates, collateral seasoning, expected lossgscted default severity, credit enhancemento#éimel pertinent factors. Management
reviews the fair values generated by the modekterthine whether prices are reflective of the mirnearket. Management performs a
validation of the fair value calculated by the pricmodel by comparing its results to independeiteg provided by dealers in the securities
and/or third party pricing services. The Compaaldves the observable inputs used in its modebijunction with dealer and/or third party
pricing services meets the criteria for classifmaias Level 2.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtbisy management to ensure the changes are agteops markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain prasib@comes more transparent, the Company will woatio refine its valuation
methodologies. The methods used to produce adhiewalculation may not be indicative of net izathle value or reflective of future fair
values. Furthermore, while the Company believegatgation methods are appropriate and consistéhtother market participants, the use
of different methodologies, or assumptions, to aeire the fair value of certain financial instrurteenould result in a different estimate of
fair value at the reporting date. The Company usgasts that are current as of the measurement @hieh may include periods of market
dislocation, during which price transparency mayduhiced.

Non-Agency, Non-Retained RMBS

The non-Agency, non-retained securities reflecteithé consolidated financial statements are séesigbnsolidated pursuant to the
Company'’s adoption of ASC 860 and ASC 810 on Janlia2010. These assets have been financed viithgarties without recourse to the
Company in the normal course of the Company’s pbeotbptimization strategy. The Company classiffesse assets as Level 3 as the fair
valuation of these securities involves significegitance on unobservable inputs. The Companyvdires these assets at the actual sale price
obtained in the financing of the debt to the thiedty as any current or future appreciation or dejption of the assets in not realizable by the
Company. See Note 8 to these consolidated finbstaitements for a detailed discussion of theseriess.

Interest Rate Swaps

The Company obtains quotations from third partieddtermine the fair values of its interest ratajgsv Management reviews the
fair values determined by its pricing model and pames its results to dealer quotes received onietafest rate swap to validate
reasonableness. The dealer quotes will incorpa@tenon market pricing methods, including a spreadsurement to the Treasury curve or
interest rate swap curve as well as underlyingadtaristics of the particular contract. Interest ivaps are modeled by the Company by
incorporating such factors as the Treasury curBQOR rates, and the pay rate on the interest ratps.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time, the observability of priaad inputs can be reduced for
certain instruments. If dealers or independertipgiservices are unable to provide a price foasset, or if the price provided by them is
deemed unreliable by the Company, then the asfidiewalued at its fair value as determined indjéaith by the Company. In addition,
validating third party pricing for the Company’s@stments may be more subjective as fewer partitspaay be willing to provide this
service to the Company. llliquid investments tytlic experience greater price volatility as a reatrket does not exist. As fair value is not
an entity-specific measure and is a market-basprbaph which considers the value of an asset bititiafrom the perspective of a market
participant, observability of prices and inputs @any significantly from period to period. A cotidh such as this can cause instruments !
reclassified from Level 1 to Level 2 or Level 2ltevel 3 when the Company is unable to obtain thady pricing verification.
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If at the valuation date, the fair value of an istveent security is less than its amortized co#tetlate of the consolidated statement
of financial condition, the Company analyzes theesiment security for OTTI. Management evalugdtesGompany’s RMBS for OTTI at
least on a quarterly basis, and more frequentlynwdm®nomic or market concerns warrant such evaluatConsideration is given to (1) the
length of time and the extent to which the fairnahas been lower than carrying value, (2) thentrdéthe Company to sell the investment
prior to recovery in fair value (3) whether the Gmany will more likely than not be required to gbk investment before the expected
recovery, and (4) the expected future cash flonth@finvestment in relation to its amortized cddhrealized losses on assets that are
considered OTTI due to credit are recognized imiegs and the cost basis of the assets are adjusted

At September 30, 2010, the Company has classiffgattgon of its assets and liabilities as Levelr2evel 3. At December 31, 20(
the Company classified its assets as Level 2. Qdrapany’s financial assets and liabilities caraedair value on a recurring basis are valued
at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 aanpeesbelow.

September 30, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 1,065,14 $ -
Subordinatec - 1,866,91 -
Senior, no-retained - - 1,967,81.
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 1,884,19. -
Liabilities:
Interest rate sway - 24,82( -
December 31, 20C
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousands
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 202240 $ z
Subordinatet - 376,45¢ -
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 1,690,02! -

The table below presents a reconciliation of changassets classified as Level 3 in the Commoghsolidated financial stateme
for the quarters and nine months ended Septemh@030 and 2009. All of the assets classifiede@gel 3 as of the period ended September
30, 2010 have been added to this classificationtaltiee adoption of ASC 860 and ASC 810 by the Camypon January 1, 2010. A
discussion of the method of fair valuing these @ssancluded above iNon-Agency, Non-Retained RMBS. Transfers in to Level 3 relate to
senior non-Agency RMBS classified as Level 2 inghier period and transferred to third party ineestin non-recourse financing
transactions during the current period. Additioglste to senior non-Agency RMBS securitized duthrgcurrent period and transferred to
third party investors in non-recourse financingngactions. Unrealized gains on the assets arediedlin other comprehensive income (loss).
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Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
(dollars in thousand:

September 3 September 3

201(C 200¢
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior, no-retained
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 2,133,481 $ =
Transfers in to Level - -
Additions - -
Principal payment (168,25() -
Accretion of investment discour 30,69¢ -
Other than temporary impairme - -
Total unrealized gains (losses) for the
period (28,127 -
Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 1,967,81. $ -

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
(dollars in thousand:

September 3 September 3

201(C 200¢
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior, no-retained
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ = & =
Transfers in to Level 186,24t -
Additions 2,090,70 -
Principal payment (383,11¢) -
Accretion of investment discour 76,06¢ -
Other than temporary impairme (1,490 -
Total unrealized gains (losses) for the
period (603) -
Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 1,967,81 $ -

As of the quarters ended September 30, 2010 artéi8bpr 30, 2009, the Company was able to obtaid ffarty pricing verificatior
for all assets classified as Level 2. In the aggte, the Company’s fair valuation of RMBS investitsevere 1.04% higher than the
aggregated dealer marks for the quarter ended i8bpte30, 2010 and 0.89% higher than the aggregksaler marks for the quarter ended
September 30, 2009.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company records securitized loans held forstnaent when it securitizes loans and records #reséction as a “financing.The
Company carries securitized loans held for inveatrag principal value, plus premiums or discourgtglpless an allowance for loan
losses. The Company estimates the future casls fiduthe assets underlying its securitized loand foe investment for purposes of
determining whether an OTTI charge is requirede Tlompany estimates the fair value of its secetipans held for investment at the loss
adjusted expected future cash flows of the colteFhe Company models each underlying asset bgidering, among other items, the
nature of the underlying collateral, coupon, sexiiactual and expected defaults, actual and exgeletfault severities, reset indices, and
prepayment speeds in conjunction with market resefar similar collateral performance and manageisesxpectations of general econol
conditions in the sector and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreements

The Company records repurchase agreements attirgiactual amounts including accrued interest bl@yaRepurchase agreeme
are collateralized financing transactions utilibycthe Company to acquire investment securitiege @ the short term nature of these
financial instruments, the Company estimated tirevidue of these repurchase agreements to beotiteactual obligation plus accrued
interest payable at maturity.
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Securitized Debt

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compasecuritization or re-
securitization transactions treated as “financiqgg’suant to ASC 860. The Company carries sezeadtdebt at the principal balance
outstanding on noretained notes associated with its securitizedddeatd for investment plus premiums or discountsnmeed with the sale
the notes to third parties. The premiums or dist®associated with the sale of the notes or @&téds are amortized over the life of the
instrument. The Company estimates the fair vafiseouritized debt by estimating the future casWw§ associated with underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Chmpany models each underlying asset by consideaingng other items, the structure of
the underlying security, coupon, servicer, actmal expected defaults, actual and expected defawdtrdies, reset indices, and prepayment
speeds in conjunction with market research forlsintiollateral performance and management’s expentaof general economic conditions
in the sector and greater economy.

The following table presents the carrying value astimated fair value, as described above, of tragany’s financial instruments
at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

September 30, 201 December 31, 20C

Carrying Estimated Fai Carrying Estimated Fai

Amount Value Amount Value
Non-Agency RMBS $ 4,899,860 $ 4,899,860 $ 2,398,860 $ 2,398,86!
Agency RMBS 1,884,19. 1,884,19. 1,690,02! 1,690,02!
Securitized loans held for investm 389,31! 393,20° 470,53: 453,38t
Repurchase agreemel (1,568,22) (1,570,51) (1,975,40) (1,977,669
Securitized dek (320,55)) (335,78) (390,35() (408,409
Securitized debt, ne-retained (1,955,66) (1,950,81) - -
Interest rate sway (24,820) (24,820) - -

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.6 billion and $#li@b of repurchase agreements with weighted ayefgorrowing rates of 0.4€
and 0.60% and weighted average remaining matuafidg and 26 days as of September 30, 2010 andrbleer 31, 2009, respectively. At
September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, RMBS@tkds collateral under these repurchase agreehsmhtn estimated fair value of
$1.7 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively. Theesage daily balances of the Company’s repurchgseements for the quarters ended
September 30, 2010 and December 30, 2009 werebtio® and $2.3 billion, respectively. The intereates of these repurchase agreements
are generally indexed to the one-month LIBOR raie r@-price accordingly.

At September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, fhecbase agreements collateralized by RMBS hatbtlesving remaining
maturities.

September 3 December 3:
201( 200¢
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ 198,67¢ $ =
1-30 days (1. 778,59t 1,772,66:
30 to 59 day: 151,59! 62,24
60 to 89 day: 230,63« -
90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 208,71¢ 140,49
Total $ 1,568,22: $ 1,975,40:

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates total%P30 million as of December 3. .,
2009. There were no repurchase agreements wittatf§ as of September 30, 20

At September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, thep@oy did not have an amount at risk greater tigéa a&f its equity with any
counterparty.
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7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateratl by residential mortgage loans or RMBS. Foafficial reporting purposes, the
Company’s securitized debt is accounted for apanfling. Thus, the residential mortgage loansMBR held as collateral are recorded in
the assets of the Company as securitized loanddreldvestment or RMBS and the securitized debécorded as a liability in the statements
of financial condition.

At September 30, 2010, the Company'’s securitizéd dellateralized by residential mortgage loans &alincipal balance of $335.8
million. The debt matures between the years 20232838. At September 30, 2010, the debt carriwdighted average cost of financing
equal to 5.52%, that is secured by residential gage loans of which approximately 44% of the remngiprincipal balance pays a fixed rate
of 6.31% and 56% of the remaining principal balapags a variable rate of 5.53%. At December 3092¢he Company'’s securitized debt
collateralized by residential mortgage loans hadrcipal balance of $390.4 million. At Decembdr, 2009, the debt carried a weighted
average cost of financing equal to 5.50%, thaétsiged by residential mortgage loans of which axiprately 43% of the remaining principal
balance pays a fixed rate of 6.33% and 57% oféh®aining principal balance pays a variable rate.68%.

At September 30, 2010, the Company’s securitizdd, d®n-retained, collateralized by RMBS had agpal balance of $2.0
billion. The debt matures between the years 20852047. At September 30, 2010, the debt carrisdighted average cost of financing
equal to 5.25%. At December 31, 2009 the Compahyat have securitized debt collateralized by RMBS

The following table presents the estimated prirlaippayment schedule of the securitized debt andrig&zed debt, nometained hel:
by the Company at September 30, 2010 and Decemib@089, based on expected cash flows of the netiidienortgage loans or RMBS, as
adjusted for projected losses, collateralizingdgbt.

September 3 December 3:
201(C 200¢
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yea $ 568,69t $ 37,19:
One to Three Yeal 861,40: 70,88t
Three to Five Year 377,40t 59,38:
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 479,09° 240,94!
Total $ 2,286,601 $ 408,40«

The significant increase in debt reflected in gigleé above reflects the Company’s adoption of ASC @& January 1, 2010. See
Note 8 for a more detailed discussi

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt aneesielent upon cash flows received from the undegligans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentse underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experiencezeiN&e 4 for a more detailed discussion of thedazollateralizing the securitized debt.

8. Consolidation

In June 2009, the FASB issued two new accountiadstrds that amended guidance applicable to ttriating for transfers of
financial assets and the consolidation of VIEs (A0 and ASC 810, respectively). The primary aftéchese standards was to eliminate
the concept of a QPSE when transferring assetsoarnove the exemption of a QSPE when applyingtimsolidation standard. The
Company adopted these new accounting standardsJaswary 1, 2010.

The Company uses securitization trusts or varigidgest entities in its securitization and re-sization transactions. Prior to
January 1, 2010, these variable interest entitiegistne definition of QSPE’s and, as such, weresnbfect to consolidation. Effective January
1, 2010, all such variable interest entities mastbnsidered for consolidation based on the caiterASC 810.

Per ASC 810, an entity shall consolidate a VIE wtiext entity has a variable interest that provithesreporting entity with a
controlling financial interest. The assessmerthefcharacteristics of the reporting ensty/|IE shall consider the VIEs purpose and desiy
controlling financial interest is defined as (2@ thower to direct the activities of a VIE that msigmificantly impact the VIEs economic
performance and (b) the obligation to absorb los$dise VIE that could potentially be significantthe VIE and/or the right to receive
benefits from the VIE that could potentially bersficant to the VIE.
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Since the Company'’s inception, the Company hagenealEs for the purpose of securitizing whole rgage loans or reecuritizing
RMBS and obtaining permanent, noeeourse term financing. The Company evaluateidtésest in each securitization trust VIE to detiee
the primary beneficiary status. The Company fotlnad seven trusts, one of which had been conselidsince its inception, met the
requirements of consolidation. The Company deteeghihat in these seven securitizations, basealimly all of the subordinate interests
maintains the obligation to absorb losses andfritiht to receive benefits from the VIE that cob&lsignificant to the VIE. In addition, the
Company had the power to direct activities of tiusttor was determined to have the ability to aaritre trust due to its contribution in the
purpose and design of the structure. The remaimiogrusts evaluated did not meet the requiremient®nsolidate due to the inability to
control one of the trusts and the lack of obligasido absorb losses on the other trust.

VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficiary

Based on the Company’s consolidation evaluaticeGbmpany consolidated three VIEs on January 10 8t were not previously
consolidated and consolidated three VIEs thateatd during 2010. The Company’s retained berréfitierest is typically the subordinated
tranches of these re-securitizations and in sorsesctne Company may hold interests in additioaalctnes. The effect in the current year is
the inclusion of an additional $2.0 billion of ndmency mortgage-backed securities at fair valuéonger retained by the Company and the
inclusion in its liabilities of $2.0 billion of nerecourse securitized debt associated with thesegueritizations.

On an ongoing basis, the Company’s retained beaakfiterests will be fair valued as Level 2 asséfhe consolidated third-party
owned interests will be fair valued as Level 3 &sssing the sale price as fair value. This istdute fact that the Company has no control
over the third-party interests and will not receqwrgy future value from them. Line items pertainiaghe third-party owned interests are
separately stated within the Company’s consolidéitethcial statements and labeled as “non-retained”

The trusts are structured as pass through entité#gseceive principal and interest on the undegd\dollateral and distribute those
payments to the certificate holders. The asseto#rer instruments held by the securitizationtistiare restricted and can only be used to
fulfill the obligations of the securitization entit Additionally, the obligations of the securitiimn entities do not have any recourse to the
general credit of any other consolidated subsigig&mor to the Company as the primary beneficiditye Company’s risks associated with its
involvement with these VIEs is limited to its risksd rights as a certificate holder of the bondiag retained. See Note 5 for a discussion of
the fair value measurement of the assets anditiabil

The securitization entities newly consolidated iy Company are similar in nature to the Compangitfgio as a whole. The
securitization entities are all composed of RMB$hef quality and characteristics of assets refteoteghe RMBS classifications found in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. Sate R for a discussion of the securities charasttesi of the portfolio.

The table below presents the assets and liabibfiesnsolidated entities as of January 1, 2010e dumulative effect adjustment
reflects the reversal of realized gains of $98.llioni previously recorded on the sales of theselp@ansolidated trusts net of the additional
accretion of discounts due to consolidating thetsiu At December 31, 2009, none of the re-seeatitin transactions completed during 2009
were consolidated.
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Carrying Value (1

(dollars in
thousands
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior, no-retained $ 1,114,03.
Liabilities
Securitized debt, ni-retainec 1,202,22:
Net assets and liabilities of newly consolidatetities (88,187
Cumulative effect adjustment to retained earningsnuadoptior $ (88,189

(1) Carrying value represents the amount the assmifd have been recorded at in the consolidatezhfiial statements at
January 1, 2010 had they been recorded in the kdatad financial statements on the date the Comfiest met the conditions
for consolidation

The cumulative effect of adopting ASC 810 on Japdar2010 based on the shares outstanding on élbatwhs to reduce the
beginning book value of the Company by $0.13 paresh

The table below reflects the assets and liabilige®rded in the consolidated statements of firdeindition related to the newly
consolidated securitization entities as of Septer8be2010.

September 30, 201

(dollars in
thousands
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior, no-retained $ 1,967,81.
Liabilities
Securitized debt, n-retained $ 1,955,66!

The consolidation of these securitization entitieseases both the income and expense recordéd itonsolidated statement of
operations for the Company as detailed in the thblew.

For the Quarter  For the Nine Month
Ended Ended
September 30, 201  September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, ne-retained $ 58,09( $ 158,78(
Interest expense, n-retainec 32,231 87,48¢
Net interest income, n-retained $ 25,85 $ 71,29:

A discussion of the significant accounting polictidshe Company to record income and expense Isded in Note 2 to these
consolidated financial statements. The effectduiping ASC 810 based on the weighted average sbaitetanding was to increase the net
interest income of the Company by approximatel¥Y3$@nd $0.09 for the quarter and nine months eBeépdember 30, 2010, respectively.

The effect of the consolidation of these secutiiiraentities on the consolidated statement ofrfaia@ condition for the Company is
presented in the table below for the periods pitesen
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For the Nine Month  For the Nine Month
Ended September  Ended September

30, 30,
2010 2009
(dollars in thousand:

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,-retained $ 1,127,87. $ S
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,-retained (394,55) -
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest recer 8,80¢ -
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa (8,809 -
Net cash flows, nc-retainec $ 733,31t $ -

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Beneficiary

The table below represents the carrying amountssgification of assets recorded on the Compargrsolidated financial
statements related to its variable interests incarsolidated VIEs, as well as its maximum exposoress as a result of its involvement with
these VIEs.

September 30, 201 December 31, 20C
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 412 $ 71t $ 47.99¢ $ 46,047
Subordinatec 8,427 6,80¢ 9,701 7,081
Agency RMBS 2,99¢ 1,96° 4,73( 4,72
Total $ 11,83¢ $ 9,48/ $ 62,42¢ $ 57,84¢

The Company’s involvement with VIEs for which itrist the primary beneficiary generally are in tbenf of purchasing securities
issued by the trusts similar to its investmentstirer RMBS that are not part of a trust it has eaed for consolidation. The Company’s
maximum exposure to loss in these entities is sged by the fair value of these assets. Thisiahmpes not include OTTI or other write-
downs that the Company previously recognized thnoeeynings.

9. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company’s interest rate nsnagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgportion of its interest
rate risk by entering into derivative financialtingsnent contracts. These derivative financialrinsient contracts do not qualify as hedges
under ASC 815Derivativesand Hedging . As of September 30, 2010, such instruments @rgdsed of interest rate swaps, which in effect
modify the cash flows on repurchase agreements. ush of interest rate swaps creates exposuredd cisk relating to potential losses that
could be recognized if the counterparties to thesteuments fail to perform their obligations untlee contracts. In the event of a default by
the counterparty, the Company could have difficoliyaining its RMBS pledged as collateral for swaphe Company does not anticipate
any defaults by its counterparties.

The Company’s swaps are used to lock in the fixeel related to a portion of its current and anéitég future 30-day term
repurchase agreements.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf interest rate swaps reported in the Conatdidl Statement of Financial
Condition as of September 30, 2010. The Companynbadterest rate swaps outstanding as of DeceBhez009.

Net Estimated

Fair
Location on Consolidated Statement of Notional Value/Carrying
Financial Conditior Amount Value
(dollars in thousand:
September 30, 201 Assets $ - % -
September 30, 201 Liabilities $ 450,00( $ (24,820

The effect of the Company’s interest rate swaptherConsolidated Statement of Operations and Cdmepsive Income (Loss) is
presented below.
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Location on Consolidated Statement
of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss
Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on Interes
Interest Expens Rate Swap:

(dollars in thousand:

For the quarter ende
September 30, 201 $ 2,497 $ (13,589

For the nine months ende
September 30, 201 $ 3,192 $ (24,82()

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’sesiteate swaps at September 30, 2010 was 2.59%andeighted average
receive rate was 0.26%. The Company had no intessswaps outstanding as of September 30, 2009.

10. Common Stock

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedidedid reinvestment and share purchase plan (“DRSHPe DRSPP
provides holders of record of its common stock ppastunity to automatically reinvest all or a portiof their cash distributions received on
common stock in additional shares of our commouoksés well as to make optional cash payments tohase shares of our common stock.
Persons who are not already stockholders may alsdh@se our common stock under the plan througbrmadtcash payments. The DRSPI
administered by the Administrator, The Bank of Néark Mellon. During the nine months ended Septen@fr2010, the Company raised
$263,000 by issuing 67,596 shares through the DRBBIhg the nine months ended September 30, 20Gthares were issued under the
DRSPP.

On March 31, 2010 the Company announced the s&b,000,000 shares of common stock at $3.61 pee sbaestimated procee
less the underwriters’ discount and offering expsnsf $306.7 million. In addition, on April 1, PO, the underwriters exercised the option to
purchase up to an additional 12,750,000 sharesrofron stock to cover over-allotments for procetstss the underwriters’ discount, of
approximately $46.0 million. The sale was compleiadApril 7, 2010. In all, the Company raised peiceeds of approximately $352.7
million in this offering.

On June 22, 2010 the Company announced the sa@gd00,000 shares of common stock at $3.61 pee $baestimated proceeds,
less the underwritergliscount and offering expenses, of $360.8 millibm addition, on June 25, 2010, the underwritereseised the option
purchase up to an additional 15,000,000 sharesrofron stock to cover over-allotments for procetstss the underwriters’ discount, of
approximately $54.2 million. The sale was compleiadune 28, 2010. In all, the Company raisegrmteeds of approximately $415.0
million in this offering.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstaraingf September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2010, tinep@ny declared dividends to common shareholdeafirtgt$158.8 million or
$0.18 per share. During the quarter ended DeceBihe2009, the Company declared dividends to comshaneholders totaling $113.8
million or $0.17 per share.

11. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptaueto provide incentives to its independentaives and employees of
FIDAC and its affiliates, to stimulate their effeitowards the Company’s continued success, lomg-geowth and profitability and to attract,
reward and retain personnel and other service geosi The incentive plan authorizes the Compeams@bmmittee of the board of directors
to grant awards, including incentive stock optiams-qualified stock options, restricted sharesa@heér types of incentive awards. The
specific award granted to an individual is basednyin part, the individual’s position within FIDAGhe individual's position within the
Company, his or her contribution to the Companggg@mance, market practices, as well as the recamdiations of FIDAC. The incentive
plan authorizes the granting of options or othearals for an aggregate of the greater of 8.0% obthstanding shares of the Company's
common stock up to a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares.
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On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrgttedk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 share$DAE's employees and the
Company’s independent directors. The awards tintiependent directors vested on the date of gnadithe awards to FIDAC's employees
vest quarterly over a period of 10 years. Of thesmes, as of September 30, 2010, 383,875 shaves/bsted and 41,735 shares were
forfeited or cancelled.

On December 22, 2009, the Compensation Committeedsd each independent director $45,000 in comrumk svhich vested on
December 31, 2009.

As of September 30, 2010, there was $16.3 millioilot@l unrecognized compensation costs relatethiovested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the lomgineentive plan, based on the closing price efghares on the grant date. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 7.3 years. The total fair value of sharested, less those forfeited during the
quarter ended September 30, 2010 was $112,062] bagse closing price of the stock on the vestiate.

12. Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company is not subject to Fedei@nne tax to the extent that it makes qualifyindritisitions to its stockholders,
and provided it satisfies on a continuing basigugh actual investment and operating resultsRIEBE requirements including certain asset,
income, distribution and stock ownership tests.sitates recognize REIT status as well. Duriegtiarter ended September 30, 2010, the
Company recorded $752,000 in income tax expenaterkto federal REIT excise tax due as a resudtgifortfall in the Company’s 2009
distributions as compared to the amount requiretuapplicable law. During the quarter ended Sepgs 30, 2009, the Company recorded
no income tax expense related to state and fetderdibbilities on undistributed income.

In general, common stock cash dividends declarethid¥ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttxkholders for income t:
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitalsgai return of capital. For the quarter
ended September 30, 2010, the Company estimateslithecome distributed in the form of dividenddle characterized as ordinary
income.

During July 2010, the Company formed CIM Tradingvpany LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary, and madeiiatjelection to treat
the subsidiary as a taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRSR¥ such, CIM Trading Company LLC is taxable aaestic C corporation and subject
to federal, state, and local income taxes based itpdaxable income. For the quarter ended Sdpge0, 2010, no income tax expense has
been recorded for this TRS as the Company doesxpetct the subsidiary to have federal taxable irctonthe year.

13. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeelit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to credit risk and
interest rate risk in connection with its investrgein non-Agency residential mortgage loans anditeensitive mortgage-backed
securities. When the Company assumes credititiaempts to minimize interest rate risk throwagiset selection, hedging and matching the
income earned on mortgage assets with the costaitd liabilities. The Company is subject to it rate risk, primarily in connection with
its investments in fixed-rate and adjustable-ratetgage-backed securities, residential mortgagesioand borrowings under repurchase
agreements. The Company attempts to minimize torislithrough due diligence and asset selectioploghasing loans underwritten to
agreed-upon specifications of selected originatditse Company has established a whole loan targekehincluding prime borrowers with
FICO scores generally greater than 650, Alt-A doentation, geographic diversification, owner-occdpgieoperty, and moderate loan to
value ratio. These factors are considered to Ip@itant indicators of credit risk.

14. Management Agreement and Related Party Trans#ons
The Company has entered into a management agreevitleritl DAC, which provides for an initial term #hmgh December 31, 2010

with an automatic one-year extension option angestitto certain termination rights. The CompanyspRIDAC a quarterly management fee
equal to 1.50% per annum of the gross Stockholdasity (as defined in the management agreemerijeo€ompany.
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Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for theetgrs ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 werg #iillion and $8.6
million, respectively. Management fees accruedaid to FIDAC for the nine months ended SeptemBe2810 and 2009 were $28.7
million and $17.2 million, respectively.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcitsts incurred under the management agreemeiaiddition, the management
agreement permits FIDAC to require the Companyatpfpr its pro rata portion of rent, telephonelitigis, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegikases that FIDAC incurred in the operation of@lmenpany. These expenses are
allocated between FIDAC and the Company based®retio of the Company’s proportion of gross assetspared to all remaining gross
assets managed by FIDAC as calculated at eachequeend. FIDAC and the Company will modify thisogthtion methodology, subject to the
Company’s board of directorapproval if the allocation becomes inequitable (ifdhe Company becomes very highly leveraged manad tc
FIDAC's other funds and accounts). During the tpraended September 30, 2010, the Company reimb&EAC approximately $177,000
for such expenses. During the quarter ended Septeddh 2009, FIDAC waived its right to request reimsement from the Company for
these expenses.

During the quarters ended September 30, 2010 andriteer 31, 2009, 48,125 and 32,225 shares ofatestritock issued by the
Company to FIDAC'’s employees vested, as discusséibie 11.

In April 2009, the Company entered into a Secuwitreustry and Financial Markets Association statigieeprinted form Master
Repurchase Agreement with RCap Securities, Incaffiliate. This standard agreement does not éoray sort of liquidity, net worth or
other similar types of positive or negative covararRather, the agreement contains covenantsabaire the buyer and seller of securitie
deliver collateral or securities, and similar coaets which are customary in the form Master RepasetAgreement. At September 30, 2010
and December 31, 2009, the Company had no finanoidgr this agreement. The Company has been inl@oroe with all covenants of this
agreement since it entered into this agreement.

In March 2008, the Company entered into a Secaritidustry and Financial Markets Association stat¢gieprinted form Master
Repurchase Agreement with Annaly. This standardeagent does not contain any sort of liquidity,wetth or other similar types of
positive or negative covenants. Rather, the ageeéontains covenants that require the buyer altet ©f securities to deliver collateral or
securities, and similar covenants which are custgnmathe form Master Repurchase Agreement. At&waper 30, 2010, the Company had
no financing under this agreement. At Decembe2809, the Company financed $259.0 million undes #yreement at a weighted average
rate of 1.72%. The Company has been in compliaiteall covenants of this agreement since it esdento this agreement.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoiwedharious claims and legal actions arising indh@inary course of
business. Management is not aware of any reportedreported contingencies at September 30, 2010.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION:

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
We make forward-looking statements in this replaat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Theseaird-looking statements

include information about possible or assumed &utesults of our business, financial conditionyilility, results of operations, plans and

objectives. When we use the words “believe,” ‘fect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “c ontinue,” “intend,” “should,” “may,”

“would,” “will” or similar expressions, we inted to identify forward-looking statements. Statetseegarding the following subjects,
among others, are forward-looking by their nature:

« our business and investment strategy;

« our projected financial and operating results;

« our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts, obtain future financing arrangements andehmas of such arrangements;

« general volatility of the securities markets in ahive invest;

« the implementation, timing and impact of, and clemtp, various government programs, including teairAsset-Backed Securities

Loan Facility and the Pub-Private Investment Prograi
e our expected investments;
« changes in the value of our investments;
« interest rate mismatches between our mortgage-Hesd@urities and our borrowings used to fund suchhases;
« changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayrags; r
. effects of interest rate caps on our adjustablemairtgage-backed securities;
» rates of default or decreased recovery rates omwastments;
» prepayments of the mortgage and other loans uridgrbur mortgage-backed or other asset-backedisesur
« the degree to which our hedging strategies mayayr mot protect us from interest rate volatility;
« impact of and changes in governmental regulatislaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikiters;
« availability of investment opportunities in reatate-related and other securities;
« availability of qualified personnel;
» estimates relating to our ability to make distribn$ to our stockholders in the future;
« our understanding of our competition; and

« market trends in our industry, interest rates,diblet securities markets or the general economy.
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The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futureopmance, taking into account
all information currently available to us. You skbuot place undue reliance on these forward-loplsitatements. These beliefs, assumptions
and expectations can change as a result of mamsjbmevents or factors, not all of which are knawmis. Some of these factors are
described under the caption “Risk Factors” in owost recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and angegbent Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q. If a change occurs, our business, finarmabition, liquidity and results of operations mayy materially from those expressed in our
forward-looking statements. Any forward-lookingtstaent speaks only as of the date on which it idenBlew risks and uncertainties arise
from time to time, and it is impossible for us tegict those events or how they may affect us.efBkas required by law, we are not oblig:
to, and do not intend to, update or revise any &mdalooking statements, whether as a result ofinfavmation, future events or otherwise.
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Executive Summary

We are a specialty finance company that invedtiseedirectly or indirectly through our subsidiarjén residential mortgage-backed
securities, or RMBS, residential mortgage loanal, @state related securities and various othet akEsses. We are externally managed by
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, which wierdéo as FIDAC or our Manager. FIDAC is a fixattdme investment management
company that is registered as an investment adwislethe Securities and Exchange Commission, d2.SEIDAC is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Annaly Capital Management, Inc., omaly. FIDAC has a broad range of experience inagang investments in Agency
RMBS, which are mortgage pass-through certificateBateralized mortgage obligations, or CMOs, atiter mortgage-backed securities
representing interests in or obligations backegdyls of mortgage loans issued or guaranteed bifeleral National Mortgage Association,
or Fannie Mae, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Catjom, or Freddie Mac, and the Government Natidhaftgage Association, or Ginr
Mae, non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debt obligasipor CDOs, and other real estate related invegsne

We have elected and intend to qualify to be tayed geal estate investment trust, or REIT, for feldacome tax purposes
commencing with our taxable year ended on Decel®@bg?007. Our targeted asset classes and thagaimevestments we expect to make
in each are as follows:

« RMBS, including:

0 Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and noresiment grade classes, including the BB-rateditBdr;, below B-
rated, and nc-rated classe

o Agency RMBS
« Residential mortgage loans, including:
o Prime mortgage loar
0 Jumbo prime mortgage loa
o Alt-A mortgage loan
« Commercial mortgage loans
« Asset Backed Securities, or ABS, including:
o Commercial mortga¢-backed securities, or CME
o Debt and equity tranches of collateralized debigaltions, or CDO:

0 Consumer and non-consumer ABS, includingstment-grade and non-investment grade classesgdingl the BB-rated, B-
rated and nc-rated classe

We completed our initial public offering on Noveml2d, 2007. In that offering and in a concurremgte offering we raised net
proceeds of approximately $533.6 million from tla¢es of shares of our common stock. Since thehave raised an aggregate of
approximately $2.5 billion in follow-on offeringsdm the sales of shares of our common stock.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, jrifg through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We idtemachieve this objective by investing in a broass of financial assets to construct an
investment portfolio that is designed to achievraative risk-adjusted returns and that is strieduo comply with the various federal income
tax requirements for REIT status and to maintainexemption from the Investment Company Act of 19the 1940 Act.
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Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquinog-Agency RMBS and
on purchasing residential mortgage loans that baea originated by select high-quality originatamsjuding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. Our investment portf@ioveighted toward non-Agency RMBS. At Septen@®&r2010, approximately 83% of
our investment portfolio was non-Agency RMBS, 12Peuar investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and B#our investment portfolio
was secured residential mortgage loans. At DeceBhe2009, approximately 68% of our investmentfotio was non-Agency RMBS, 25%
of our investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and @four investment portfolio was secured residémtiartgage loans. We expect that
over the near term our investment portfolio wilhtiaue to be weighted toward RMBS, subject to maimihg our REIT qualification and our
1940 Act exemption. In addition, we have engageahid depending on market conditions, anticipatgicoing to engage in transactions
with residential mortgage lending operations ofllag commercial banks and other high-quality ordars in which we identify and re-
underwrite residential mortgage loans owned by snthies, and rather than purchasing and sedmgtiguch residential mortgage loans
ourselves, we and the originator structure thergézation and we purchase the resulting mezzaamtksubordinate non-Agency RMBS. We
may also engage in similar transactions with noefay RMBS in which we acquire non-Agency RMBS asdecuritize those
securities. We then sell some or all of the réasglBAA-rated RMBS and may retain some of the AA#ed RMBS and other subordinate
bonds and interests.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We will
adjust our strategy to changing market conditionshifting our asset allocations across these varasset classes as interest rate and credit
cycles change over time. We believe that ouresgsgtcombined with FIDAG experience, will enable us to pay dividends aitdexe capite
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. efiect to take a long-term view of assets andliligls, and our reported earnings and
mark-to-market valuations at the end of a finanelorting period will not significantly impact oabjective of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the kemngp.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potegtialns and to fund the acquisition of our assétsr income is generated primarily
by the difference, or net spread, between the ircam earn on our assets and the cost of our bargswiWe expect to finance our
investments using a variety of financing sourcetuiting, when available, repurchase agreementsheaise facilities, securitizations,
commercial paper and term financing CDOs. We mamag debt by utilizing interest rate hedges, acnterest rate swaps, to reduce the
effect of interest rate fluctuations related to dabt.

Recent Developments

We commenced operations in November 2007 in thstaidchallenging market conditions which affectieel cost and availability
of financing from the facilities with which we exgted to finance our investments. These instrumentsded repurchase agreements,
warehouse facilities, securitizations, asset-baddedmercial paper, or ABCP, and term CDOs. Theidiidy crisis which commenced in
August 2007 affected each of these sources—anditii#vidual providers—to different degrees; somearges generally became unavailable,
some remained available but at a high cost, anaseene largely unaffected. For example, in theirelpase agreement market, non-Agency
RMBS became harder to finance, depending on the ayjassets collateralizing the RMBS. The amaentn and margin requirements
associated with these types of financings wereiaipacted. At that time, warehouse facilitiesitmhce whole loan prime residential
mortgages were generally available from major bablsat significantly higher costs and had greatargin requirements than previously
offered. It was also extremely difficult to termdnce whole loans through securitization or bdeslsed by a CDO structure. Financing
using ABCP froze as issuers became unable to ptagell) their securities, which resulted, in somstances, in forced sales of mortgage-
backed securities, or MBS, and other securitieckhirther negatively impacted the market valutheke assets.

Although the credit markets had been undergoingmtubulence, as we started ramping up our poctfoliate 2007, we noted a
slight easing. We entered into a number of remaselragreements we could use to finance RMBS. niumadg 2008, we entered into two
whole mortgage loan repurchase agreements. Asganbto see the availability of financing, we wals seeing better underwriting
standards used to originate new mortgages. We emoed buying and financing RMBS and also enteredagreements to purchase whole
mortgage loans. We purchased high credit quadisgts which we believed we would be readily abfngnce.

Beginning in mid-February 2008, credit markets eipeed a dramatic and sudden adverse changeseleeity of the limitation on
liquidity was largely unanticipated by the market€redit once again froze, and in the mortgagekatavaluations of nomgency RMBS an
whole mortgage loans came under severe presstnis.ciedit crisis began in early February 2008, waédeavily leveraged investor
announced that it had to de-lever and liquidatertfgio of approximately $30 billion of non-Agen&®MBS. Prices of these types of
securities dropped dramatically, and lenders stdawering the prices on non-Agency RMBS that theld as collateral to secure the loans
they had extended. The subsequent failure in M20€I8 of Bear Stearns & Co. worsened the crisis.th& year progressed, deterioration in
the fair value of our assets continued, we recear@imet margin calls under our repurchase agreismehich resulted in our obtaining
additional funding from third parties, includingpin Annaly Capital Management, Inc., or Annaly, Hiliate, and taking other steps to
increase our liquidity.
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Many of the challenges of the first half of 200&&a&ontinued through the third quarter of 2010fjra@ncing difficulties have
severely pressured liquidity and asset valuesSejptember 2008, Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc.apninvestment bank, experienced a
major liquidity crisis and failed. Securities tnagl remains limited and mortgage securities finagenarkets remain challenging as the
industry continues to report negative news. Thfodation in the non-Agency mortgage sector hagenidifficult for us to obtain shoterm
financing on favorable terms. As a result, weehewmpleted loan securitizations in order to obkaing-term financing and terminated our
un-utilized whole loan repurchase agreements ierai@avoid paying nonsage fees under those agreements. In additiohawein the pa:
sought and received funding from Annaly. Undeséheircumstances, we expect to take actions intetedprotect our liquidity, which may
include reducing borrowings and disposing of asasetwell as raising capital.

During this period of market dislocation, fiscabdamonetary policymakers established new liquiditgilities for primary dealers and
commercial banks, reduced short-term interest rates passed legislation that is intended to addteschallenges of mortgage borrowers
and lenders. This legislation, the Housing and Boan Recovery Act of 2008, seeks to forestall hdareclosures for distressed borrowers
and assist communities with foreclosure problems.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, there were increaadentoncerns about Freddie Mac and Fannie Médisyao withstand future
credit losses associated with securities heldeir ihvestment portfolios, and on which they pra@vglarantees, without the direct support of
the federal government. In September 2008 Fanmie &hd Freddie Mac were placed into the conseskatoof the Federal Housing Finar
Agency, or FHFA, their federal regulator, pursu@nits powers under The Federal Housing FinancaiRéary Reform Act of 2008, a part of
the Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008.thesconservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Maci-Hi€A controls and directs the
operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and mptake over the assets of and operate Fannie Mh&m@adie Mac with all the powers of
the shareholders, the directors, and the officeFsaonie Mae and Freddie Mac and conduct all bssiné Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (2)
collect all obligations and money due to Fannie Maé Freddie Mac; (3) perform all functions of FienMae and Freddie Mac which are
consistent with the conservator’'s appointmentp{éserve and conserve the assets and propertynoféd-slae and Freddie Mac; and (5)
contract for assistance in fulfilling any functiagtivity, action or duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of HarMae and Freddie Mac, (i) the U.S. Departmerireasury and FHFA have
entered into preferred stock purchase agreemet®ée the U.S. Department of Treasury, or the Tigasnd Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
pursuant to which the Treasury will ensure thahezfd-annie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a p@sitt worth; (ii) the Treasury has
established a new secured lending credit facilityclv will be available to Fannie Mae, Freddie Maied the Federal Home Loan Banks,
which is intended to serve as a liquidity backstepich was available through December 2009; atixtii¢ Treasury has initiated a tempor
program to purchase RMBS issued by Fannie Mae esblie Mac. Although the Treasury has committgatahto Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac, there can be no assurance that these actibfieadequate for their needs. If these actiorsraadequate, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
could continue to suffer losses and could faildadr their guarantees and other obligations. Thaduoles of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
could be significantly reduced and the nature efrtuarantees could be considerably diminished. éanges to the nature of the guaran
provided by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could redefihat constitutes Mortgage-Backed Securitiescantt have broad adverse market
implications.

Given the highly fluid and evolving nature of theseents, it is unclear how our business will beaotpd. Based upon the further
activity of the U.S. government or market respaiesgevelopments at Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, aosinless could be adversely impacted.

The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008EBSA, was enacted in October 2008. The EESAigesvthe U.S. Secretary
of the Treasury with the authority to establishraubled Asset Relief Program, or TARP, to purcHasm financial institutions up to $700
billion of equity or preferred securities, residahbr commercial mortgages and any securitiesgabbns, or other instruments that are based
on or related to such mortgages, that in eachwaseoriginated or issued on or before March 148266 well as any other financial
instrument that the U.S. Secretary of the Treasaftgr consultation with the Chairman of the Boafd@overnors of the Federal Reserve
System, determines the purchase of which is negessaromote financial market stability, upon tsamittal of such determination, in writir
to the appropriate committees of the U.S. Congr@se EESA also provides for a program that wollldhacompanies to insure their
troubled assets.
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The U.S. Government, Federal Reserve and othemgmental and regulatory bodies have taken or amsidering taking other
actions to address the financial crisis. The TAgset-Backed Securities Loan Facility, or TALF, viiast announced by the Treasury on
November 25, 2008, and has been expanded in sizecape since its initial announcement. UndeiMkkeF, the Federal Reserve Bank
New York, or the FRBNY, provides n-recourse loans to borrowers to fund their purcludisdigible assets. The FRBNY has stopped
accepting applications for credit under the TALBgram for all collateral.

In November 2008, the Federal Reserve announcedansion of its open-market operations to supgpertredit markets through
the purchase of up to $100 billion in Agency deid 8500 billion in Agency MBS. In March 2009, thederal Reserve further expanded the
program to include purchase of up to $300 billibtoager term Treasury securities and increaseal ptrchases of Agency debt and MBS to
$200 billion and $1.25 trillion respectively. Tleesurchases were completed by March 31, 2010.

In addition, on March 23, 2009, the U.S. Treasumgonjunction with the Federal Deposit Insurancgg@ration, or FDIC, and the
Federal Reserve, announced the establishment &fublkc-Private Investment Program, or PPIP. ThiPR$designed to encourage the
transfer of certain illiquid legacy real estagdated assets off of the balance sheets of fiaamstitutions, restarting the market for thesse&
and supporting the flow of credit and other cagitéd the broader economy.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into teesntodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Etiote Act, or the Dodd-
Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act provides for new rfagions on financial institutions and creates neyesvisory and advisory bodies,
including the new Consumer Financial Protectionedur The Dodd-Frank Act tasks many agencies wstling a variety of new regulations,
including rules related to mortgage origination aedvicing, securitization and derivatives. As Bald-Frank Act has only recently been
enacted and because a significant number of régutahave yet to be proposed or adopted in finahfat is not possible for us to predict h
the Dodd-Frank Act will impact our business.

Although these aggressive steps are intended tegirand support the US housing and mortgage maxieetontinue to operate
under difficult market conditions. As a resulteté can be no assurance that the EESA, the TARH,ALF, the large scale asset purchases,
PPIP, the Dodd-Frank Act or other policy initiatweill have a beneficial impact on the financialrk@ds, including current extreme levels of
volatility. We cannot predict whether or when sactions may occur or what impact, if any, sucloastcould have on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be &fteby various factors, many of which are beyondamntrol. Our results of
operations will primarily depend on, among othéngls, the level of our net interest income, thekatwwalue of our assets, and the supply of
and demand for such assets. Our net interest iacatnich reflects the amortization of purchase puems and accretion of discounts, varies
primarily as a result of changes in interest rates;owing costs, and prepayment speeds, whichmieasurement of how quickly borrowers
pay down the unpaid principal balance on their gagge loans.

Prepayment Speeds. Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constapaynent Rate, or CPR, vary according to intergssrdahe
type of investment, conditions in financial marketsmpetition and other factors, none of which barmpredicted with any certainty. In
general, when interest rates rise, it is relativess attractive for borrowers to refinance theirtgage loans, and as a result, prepayment
speeds tend to decrease. When interest rateprigfiayment speeds tend to increase. For mortgageahd RMBS investments purchased at
a premium, as prepayment speeds increase, the &wfdnnome we earn decreases because the purpfes@im we paid for the bonds
amortizes faster than expected. Conversely, deesda prepayment speeds result in increased ineochean extend the period over which
we amortize the purchase premium. For mortgage doa@rRMBS investments purchased at a discountggapment speeds increase, the
amount of income we earn increases because ottidesation of the accretion of the discount imi@iest income. Conversely, decreases in
prepayment speeds result in decreased income arektend the period over which we accrete the @mselliscount into interest income.

33




Rising Interest Rate Environment. As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prepayspeeds generally decrease. Rising interest
rates, however, increase our financing costs wimali result in a net negative impact on our ner@stincome. In addition, if we acquire
Agency and non-Agency RMBS collateralized by montielset adjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, arekthand five-year hybrid ARMs,
such interest rate increases could result in deessim our net investment income, as there coulltbming mismatch between the interest
reset dates on our RMBS portfolio and the finandaosts of these investments. We expect, howevat our fixed-rate assets would decline
in value in a rising interest rate environment #rat our net interest spreads on fixed rate asseisl decline in a rising interest rate
environment to the extent such assets are finawdtedloating rate debt.

Falling Interest Rate Environment. As interest rates fall, prepayment speeds gendraihgase. Falling interest rates, however,
decrease our financing costs which may resultrietgpositive impact on our net interest incomeaddition, if we acquire Agency and non-
Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly reset adjbkarate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- and fivarygbrid ARMs, such interest rate
decreases could result in increases in our nestmant income, as there could be a timing mismbétiveen the interest rate reset dates on
our RMBS portfolio and the financing costs of théseestments. We expect, however, that our fixad-assets would increase in value in a
falling interest rate environment and that ourintdrest spreads on fixed rate assets could ineti@as falling interest rate environment to the
extent such assets are financed with floatingdets.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is acquiring assetshwhie believe to be of high credit quality. Weibeé this strategy
will generally keep our credit losses and finanaingts low. We retain the risk of potential crédgses on all of the residential mortgage
loans we hold in our portfolio. Additionally, somé&our investments in RMBS may be qualifying im&ts for purposes of maintaining our
exemption from the 1940 Act because we retain &d06@&nership interest in the underlying loans. & purchase all classes of these
securitizations, we have the credit exposure omuttaerlying loans. Prior to the purchase of treesmirities, we conduct a due diligence
process that allows us to remove loans that doneett our credit standards based on loan-to-vatigsydorrowerstredit scores, income a
asset documentation and other criteria that webelio be important indications of credit risk.

Sze of Investment Portfolio. The size of our investment portfolio, as measunethb aggregate unpaid principal balance of our
mortgage loans and aggregate principal balanceriortgage related securities and the other assetsvn is also a key revenue
driver. Generally, as the size of our investmentfplio grows, the amount of interest income wesetige increases. The larger investment
portfolio, however, drives increased expenses amete additional interest expense to finance thielpase of our assets.

Since changes in interest rates may significarifgctour activities, our operating results dependarge part, upon our ability to
effectively manage interest rate risks and prepaymsks while maintaining our status as a REIT.

Current Environment. Weakness in the broader mortgage markets cowigrsely affect one or more of our potential lenderany
of our lenders and could cause one or more of otgrpial lenders or any of our lenders to be urimglior unable to provide us with financing
or require us to post additional collateral. Imgeal, this could potentially increase our finaigctosts and reduce our liquidity or require u
sell assets at an inopportune time. We expecsécaunumber of sources to finance our investmardisiding repurchase agreements,
warehouse facilities, securitizations, asset-badosdmercial paper and term CDOs. Current markedlitions have affected the cost and
availability of financing from each of these sowamd their individual providers to different deggpsome sources generally are unavailable,
some are available but at a high cost, and somlaely unaffected. For example, in the repuretegreement market, borrowers have been
affected differently depending on the type of sdguhey are financing. Non-Agency RMBS have bbarder to finance, depending on the
type of assets collateralizing the RMBS. The amyo@nm and margin requirements associated witbetligpes of financings have been
negatively impacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finance wholarigprime residential mortgages are generally availttom major banks, but at a
significantly higher cost and have greater margiuirements than previously offered. Many majorkdsahat offer warehouse facilities have
also reduced the amount of capital available to eetrants and consequently the size of those tiasilbffered now are smaller than those
previously available.
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It is currently a challenging market to term finarvehole loans through securitization or bonds iddyea CDO structure. The higt
rated senior bonds in these securitizations and Gf@tures currently have liquidity, but at mucldev spreads than issues priced in recent
history. The junior subordinate tranches of thesectures currently have few buyers and currentetazonditions have forced issuers to
retain these lower rated bonds rather than seththe

Certain issuers of ABCP have been unable to placceo(l) their securities, which has resulted, am® instances, in forced sales of
MBS and other securities which has further neghtivepacted the market value of these assets. eltresket conditions are fluid and likely
to change over time. As a result, the executiooufinvestment strategy may be dictated by thé aod availability of financing from these
different sources.

If one or more major market participants fails treywise experiences a major liquidity crisis, aswhe case for Bear Stearns & Co.
in March 2008, and Lehman Brothers Holdings IncS@aptember 2008, it could negatively impact theketability of all fixed income
securities and this could negatively impact theigalf the securities we acquire, thus reducingnetibook value. Furthermore, if many of
our potential lenders or any of our lenders areillingy or unable to provide us with financing, weutd be forced to sell our securities or
residential mortgage loans at an inopportune tirhemprices are depressed.

As described above, there has been significantrgovent action in the capital markets. Howeverrdtean be no assurance that the
government’s actions with respect to Freddie Mat Bannie Mae, the EESA, the TARP, the TALF, theFPRie Dodd-Frank Act or other
policy initiatives will have a beneficial impact éme financial markets. To the extent the marketsohot respond favorably to these actions,
or these actions do not function as intended, asimnless may not receive the anticipated positiyechfrom them. In addition, the U.S.
Government, Federal Reserve and other governmamdalegulatory bodies have taken or are considéaiigg other actions to address the
financial crisis. We cannot predict whether or wisenh actions may occur or what impact, if anyhsactions could have on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

In the current market, it may be difficult or impiisle to obtain third party pricing on the investiteewe purchase. In addition,
validating third party pricing for our investmemigy be more subjective as fewer participants mayilb@g to provide this service to
us. Moreover, the current market is more illigtiidn in recent history for some of the investmagspurchase. llliquid investments typic:
experience greater price volatility as a ready madoes not exist. As volatility increases or idity decreases we may have greater diffic
financing our investments which may negatively ictgzur earnings and the execution of our investrarategy.

Market conditions are evolving on a number of feofRegulatory and technical dynamics continue t@lkig, and monetary policy
initiatives, including the prospect of large scadset purchases by the Federal Reserve, contirsugport asset prices and lower yields ac
a wide range of market sectors, including ours.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatigepted in the United States
America, or GAAP. These accounting principles mequire us to make some complex and subjectivesibas and assessments. Our most
critical accounting policies will involve decisioasd assessments that could affect our reportedsaasd liabilities, as well as our reported
revenues and expenses. We believe that all afébisions and assessments upon which our conslifiatincial statements are based will
be reasonable at the time made and based upomigtion available to us at that time. At each ceraehd, we calculate estimated fair value
of the investment portfolio using a pricing mod®&le validate our pricing model by obtaining indeghent pricing on all of our assets and
performing a verification of those sources to ownadnternal estimate of fair value. The followiage our most critical accounting policies:

Sales, Securitizations, and |-securitizations

We periodically enter into transactions in which sedl financial assets, such as RMBS, mortgageslaal other assets. Gains and
losses on sales of assets are computed on thdispaantification method whereby we record a gainoss on the difference between the
carrying value of the asset and the proceeds fhensale. In addition, we may from time to timewsiize or re-securitize assets and sell
tranches in the newly securitized assets. Thassdctions may be recorded as either a sale aradskhés contributed to the securitization are
removed from the consolidated statements of firercindition and a gain or loss is recognized,soa éinancing whereby the assets
contributed to the securitization are not derecogphibut rather the liabilities issued by the semation are recorded to reflect the term
financing of the assets. In these securitizatansre-securitizations we may retain senior anslibordinated interests in the securitized or re
securitized assets.
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Valuation of Investments

Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC 8E@ir Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and establishes a three-level valudtierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurens tt enhances disclosure requirements for
fair value measurements. The valuation hierarshyased upon the transparency of inputs to thatiatuof an asset or liability as of the
measurement date. The three levels are definfdlaws:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imgwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to overall fair value.

Non-Agency and Agency MBS are valued using a pgicirodel. The MBS pricing model incorporates swadidrs as coupons,
prepayment speeds, spread to the Treasury andcwags, convexity, duration, periodic and life cegosd credit enhancement. Management
reviews the fair values determined by the pricingdel and compares its results to dealer quote$vegten each investment to validate the
reasonableness of the valuations indicated byribng models. The dealer quotes incorporate commarket pricing methods, including a
spread measurement to the Treasury curve or intertesswap curve as well as underlying charadiesisf the particular security including
coupon, periodic and life caps, rate reset pergstier, additional credit support and expecteddiféhe security.

Although we utilize a pricing model to compute thé value of the securities in our portfolio, walidate our fair values by seeking
indications of fair value from thirgarty dealers and/or pricing services. The vaiitgldlf fair value among dealers and pricing sersican b¢
wide at this time as full liquidity for the non-Agey market has yet to return. In addition, theeefawer participants in the RMBS sector
available to fair value investments. Our intewallations of the securities on which we receivedler marks were 1.04% higher at
September 30, 2010 and 0.89% higher at Septemh&080 than the aggregated dealer marks.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtkisy management to ensure the changes are ateopts markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain praslbecomes more transparent, we continue to refin@aluation methodologies. The
methods used by us may produce a fair value cdionlthat may not be indicative of net realizabddue or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore, while we believe our valuation methadsappropriate and consistent with other mar&gigipants, the use of different
methodologies, or assumptions, to determine thiesédile of certain financial instruments could tegua different estimate of fair value at
the reporting date. We use inputs that are cuasmf the measurement date, which may includegeef market dislocation, during which
price transparency may be reduced. This condat@arid cause our financial instruments to be retflagdsfrom Level 2 to Level 3.

Other-than-Temporary Impairments

We evaluate each investment in our RMBS portfatiodther-than-temporary impairments, or OTTI, gedytor more often if
market conditions warrant. Each investment is azeadyand we determine if we (1) have the intenetbtse security, (2) are more likely than
not to be required to sell the security before vecy, or (3) we do not expect to recover the ergtir®rtized cost basis of the security. Further,
each security is analyzed for credit loss by coingathe difference between the present value df dlasvs expected to be collected and the
amortized cost basis. The credit loss, if anyhé&ntrecognized in the consolidated statements erfabipns, while the balance of impairment
related to other factors is recognized in other mahensive income (loss).
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Securitized Loans Held for Investme

Our securitized residential mortgage loans are cw®g of fixed-rate and variable-rate loans. Wechase pools of residential
mortgage loans through a select group of origisatdiortgage loans are designated as held for imes¥, recorded on trade date, and are
carried at their principal balance outstandingsgay premiums or discounts which are amortizeacoreted over the estimated lives of the
loans, less allowances for loan losses.

Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Backed Séms

We invest in RMBS representing interests in oblayat backed by pools of mortgage loans and caoyelsecurities at fair value
estimated using a pricing model. Management revign@ fair values generated by the model to deterwhether prices are reflective of the
current market. Management performs a validatfahefair value calculated by the pricing modeldmmparing its results to independent
prices provided by dealers in the securities anitMod party pricing services. If dealers or indagent pricing services are unable to provi
price for an asset, or if the price provided bynthe deemed unreliable by FIDAC, then the assdtheilvalued at its fair value as determined
in good faith by FIDAC. In the current marketnigy be difficult or impossible to obtain third pagricing on certain of our investments. In
addition, validating third party pricing for ouniastments may be more subjective as fewer partitspaay be willing to provide this service
to us. Moreover, the current market is more iliiginan in recent history for some of the investtaeme own. llliquid investments typically
experience greater price volatility as a ready madoes not exist. As volatility increases or idity decreases, we may have greater
difficulty financing its investments which may néigaly impact its earnings and the execution ofritestment strategy.

Our investment securities are classified as eittagling investments, available-for-sale investmentseld-to-maturity investments.
We intend to hold our RMBS as available-for-sald as such may sell any of our RMBS as part of @eral management of our
portfolio. All assets classified as available-fade are reported at estimated fair value, witkealired gains and losses included in other
comprehensive income.

RMBS transactions are recorded on the trade ddéalized gains and losses from sales of RMBS asrdned based on the
specific identification method and recorded asia {Jass) on sale of investments in the statem&nperations. Accretion of discounts or
amortization of premiums on available-for-sale sii@s and mortgage loans is computed using thecttffe interest yield method and is
included as a component of interest income in thiement of operations.

Interest Income

Interest income on RMBS and loans held for investngerecognized over the life of the investmernhgshe effective interest
method. Income recognition is suspended for le@men, in the opinion of management, a full recowarincome and principal becomes
doubtful. Income recognition is resumed when tdanlbecomes contractually current and performandemonstrated to be resumed.

Accounting For Derivative Financial Instruments anéledging Activities

Our policies permit us to enter into derivative traats, including interest rate swaps and intaistcaps, as a means of mitigating
our interest rate risk. We use interest rate ddviganstruments to mitigate interest rate riskeatthan to enhance returns. We account for
these instruments as free-standing derivativesodingly, they are carried at fair value with ieedl and unrealized gains and losses
recognized in earnings.

We recognize all derivatives as either assetsabiliies in the statement of financial conditiamdameasure those instruments at fair
value. Additionally, the fair value adjustmentsiifect net income as we did not elect to use kexigrounting.

Derivatives will be used for economic hedging pwgmrather than speculation. We will rely on quotest from third parties to
determine fair values. We compare the dealer guateeived by the Company to the fair values geeeday our own internal pricing model
which incorporates such factors as the TreasunyesWwiBOR rates, and payment rates on the fixediguoof the interest rate swaps. If our
hedging activities do not achieve our desired tesolr reported earnings may be adversely affected
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Allowance for Probable Credit Losst

We have established an allowance for loan lossadeatel that management believes is adequate loasad evaluation of known
and inherent probable losses related to our loatfiglio. The estimate is based on a variety ofdexincluding current economic conditions,
industry loss experience, the loan originator'slegperience, credit quality trends, loan portfalionposition, delinquency trends, national
and local economic trends, national unemploymet#,ddnanges in housing appreciation or depreciaia whether specific geographic
areas where we have significant loan concentragoa&xperiencing adverse economic conditions &edte such as natural disasters that
may affect the local economy or property valuesotdpurchase of the pools of loans, we obtainederritepresentations and warranties from
the sellers that we could be reimbursed for theevalf the loan if the loan fails to meet the agrepdn origination standards. While we have
little history of our own to establish loan trendsjinquency trends of the originators and theantrmarket conditions aid in determining the
allowance for loan losses. We also performed dligiedce procedures on a sample of loans that metiiteria during the purchase
process. We have created an unallocated provisiqorobable loan losses estimated as a percenfabe remaining principal on the
loans. Management’s estimate is based on histaqeerience of similarly underwritten pools.

When we determine it is probable that specific @otually due amounts are uncollectible, the am@iobnsidered
impaired. Where impairment is indicated, a vahmtivrite-off is measured based upon the excedseofdcorded investment over the net fair
value of the collateral, reduced by selling cogtsy deficiency between the carrying amount of ased and the net sales price of repossesse
collateral is charged to the allowance for loarséss

Income Taxes

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxed REIT. Therefore we will generally not be sabje corporate federal or state
income tax to the extent that we make qualifyingrihutions to our stockholders, and provided wesBaon a continuing basis, through
actual investment and operating results, the RE¢jLirements including certain asset, income, istion and stock ownership tests.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT, and do not qualftyr certain statutory relief provisions, we wik Isubject to federal, state and local
income taxes and may be precluded from qualifyg;ig &EIT for the subsequent four taxable yearsvioflg the year in which we lost our
REIT qualification. Accordingly, our failure to glify as a REIT could have a material adverse ihpacur results of operations and
amounts available for distribution to our stockleskl

The dividends paid deduction of a REIT for qualifyidividends to its stockholders is computed usimgtaxable income as opposed
to net income reported on the consolidated findstéements. Taxable income, generally, willgifirom net income reported on the
consolidated financial statements because thendgtation of taxable income is based on tax prowisiand not financial accounting
principles.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
General Principles
Assets

Receivables (ASC 310)

In April, 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standapdate, or ASU 2010-18, which addresses thetaidfealoan modification
when a loan is part of a pool accounted for asglsiasset. This update clarifies the treatmeattodubled debt restructuring. This guidance
allows acquired assets, which have evidence oftaleterioration upon acquisition and common riekracteristics, to be accounted for in
aggregate as a pool. Upon establishment of thk fh@pool becomes the unit of accounting. Anycpase discount is not allocated to
individual loans, thus all of the loans in the paotrete at a single pool rate based on cash ftojegtions for the pool. Likewise, impairme
analysis is performed on the pool as a whole, nandividual loans. Modifications to loans, evéthiose modifications are considered
troubled debt restructuring, do not result in anlbaing removed from the pool. This treatmenbissistent with our current accounting
practices and therefore has no material effectusrconsolidated financial statements.
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In July 2010, the FASB released ASU 2010-20, whaidtresses disclosures about the credit qualitinah€ing receivables and the
allowance for credit losses. The purpose of tpate is to provide greater transparency regattiegllowance for credit losses and the
credit quality of financing receivables as welltasssist in the assessment of credit risk expssamd evaluation of the adequacy of
allowances for credit losses. Additional disclesumust be provided on a disaggregated basis.uftiae defines two levels of
disaggregation — portfolio segment and class @fifiaing receivable. Additionally, the update regsidisclosure of credit quality indicators,
past due information and modifications of financiegeivables. The update is not applicable tagage banking activities (loans originated
or purchased for resale to investors); derivatistruments such as repurchase agreements; debtissgua transferors interest in
securitization transactions accounted for as salder ASC 860; and purchased beneficial interestecuritized financial assets. This update
is effective for us for interim or annual periodglang on or after December 15, 2010. At this time,are evaluating the effect of this update
on future financial reporting.

Broad Transactions

Consolidation (ASC 810)

Effective January 1, 2010, the consolidation steglhave been amended by ASU 2009-17. This amartdipdates the existing
standard and eliminates the exemption from conatitid of a Qualified Special Purpose Entity, or @SH he update requires an enterpris
perform an analysis to determine whether the eriggrg variable interest or interests give it ateolling financial interest in a variable
interest entity, or VIE. The analysis identifieg frimary beneficiary of a VIE as the enterprisa thas both: (1) the power to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the eyisteconomic performance and (2) the obligatioalisorb losses and/or the right to receive
benefits from the entity which could potentially significant to the VIE. The update requires erdeahdisclosures to provide users of
financial statements with more transparent inforomaébout an enterprises involvement in a VIE. Wdge determined we are the primary
beneficiary on a number of VIEs formed through eetsitizations. We were required to consolidateB8BvWe-securitization transactions
previously recorded during the year ended Decer@beP009 as sales for GAAP beginning with the éffecdate of this ASU. Consolidati
of these transactions altered the presentationeo€dnsolidated financial statements by increasimghonAgency portfolio and increasing t
value of non-recourse liabilities for which we haa@continuing obligation. The consolidation hegarsed previously recorded GAAP gains
on sales of assets related to the re-securitizatiodertaken in 2009. The reversal of this galhbei accreted over the remaining life of the
re-securitized assets. The adoption of this guiddras resulted in material changes to the form@cantent of our consolidated financial
statements, as well as enhanced disclosures. ®efee discussion in Note 8 to the consolidatadritial statements.

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)

The FASB issued ASU 2010-8 in February 2010. ABSW®@8 provided technical corrections to ASC 81hisTupdate provides a
four step analysis to determine whether call orguiions that can accelerate the settlement ofidettuments should be considered clearly
and closely related to the debt host contracit isfdetermined that such option is closely raldtethe host contract, bifurcation of the host
contract from the derivative instrument is not reseey. If an existing hybrid instrument requirdsiication under this update, a one-time
election can be made to utilize the Fair Value @pfor the entire contract. This update wasaotiffe for us January 1, 2010 and had no
material effect on our consolidated financial staats.

ASU 2010-11 was issued in March 2010 and definscbpe exception for embedded derivative featutéshninvolve only the
transfer of credit risk that is only in the formsfbordination of one financial instrument to amothSuch instruments would not be subject to
bifurcation under ASC 815. This guidance is effecfor the first quarter beginning after June 2610, however early adoption for the first
fiscal quarter is allowed. We elected to earlymdor the first quarter of 2010. Adoption of ti&U had no effect on our consolidated
financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In January 2010, FASB issued ASU 2010-06, whicheiases disclosure regarding the fair value of assete key provisions of this
guidance include the requirement to disclose séglgirtne amounts of significant transfers in antlafLevel 1 and Level 2 including a
description of the reason for the transfers. Fuasly this was only required of transfers betweendl 2 and Level 3 assets. Further,
reporting entities are required to provide fairmemeasurement disclosures for each class of aswt&bilities; a class is potentially a sul
of the assets or liabilities within a line itemtire statement of financial position. Additionaltiisclosures about the valuation techniques and
inputs used to measure fair value for both recgrand nonrecurring fair value measurements ardnestjfor either Level 2 or Level 3
assets. This portion of the guidance is effediiveall interim and annual reporting periods afbecember 15, 2009. The guidance also
requires that the disclosure on any Level 3 assgiesented separately for purchases, salesnisssiand settlements. In other words, Level
3 assets are presented on a gross basis ratheastmare net number. However, this last portiothefguidance becomes effective for all
interim and annual reporting periods beginningrdftecember 15, 2010. Adoption of this guidanceiltesn increased footnote disclosure in
our consolidated financial statements.
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Subsequent Events (ASC 855)
In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-09 asnaendment to ASC 855. This update eliminateddhjairement to provide a

specific date through which subsequent events exmkiated. The purpose of this update was toiatlepotential conflicts between ASC
855 and SEC reporting requirements. The updateeffastive upon issuance. We have evaluated sukse¢gvents through date of issuance
of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

On June 12, 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-16 aandment update to the accounting standards goetiéntransfer and
servicing of financial assets. This amendment wgxitte existing standard and eliminated the corafeppQSPE, clarifies the surrendering of
control to effect sale treatment, and modifiesfthancial components approach — limiting the cirstamces in which a financial asset or
portion thereof should be derecognized when thesfegior maintains continuing involvement. It defrthe term “Participating Interest,” and
under this standard update, the transferor musgréze and initially measure at fair value all assbtained and liabilities incurred as a re
of a transfer, including any retained beneficig¢mast. Additionally, the amendment requires enbkdrdisclosures regarding the transferors
risk associated with continuing involvement in aransferred assets. The amendment was effeatigimiting January 1, 2010 and had a
material impact on our consolidated financial steats. See discussion under Consolidation (AST} &hove.

Financial Condition

At September 30, 2010, our portfolio consisted4Bsbillion of non-Agency RMBS, $1.9 billion of Agey RMBS and $389.3
million of securitized mortgage loans. At DecemBg&r 2009, our portfolio consisted of $2.4 billiohnmn-Agency RMBS, $1.7 billion of
Agency RMBS and $470.5 million of securitized madg loans.

The following table summarizes certain charactiesstf our portfolio at the quarters ended Septer86e2010 and 2009 and qual
ended December 31, 2009.

September 3(  September 3(  December 31,

2010 2009 2009
Interest earning assets at pe-end * $ 7,173,371 $ 431868 $ 4,559,42
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 384444 $ 2,011,65 $ 2,365,75
Leverage at peric-end 1.3:1 0.9:1 1.1:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 0.5:1 0.7:1 0.9:1
Portfolio Composition, at principal valt
Non-Agency RMBS 82.8% 63.(% 64.€%
Senior 5.7% 32.2% 37.5%
Senior, interest onl 32.2% 0.C% 0.C%
Subordinatet 29.6% 26.2% 22.(%
Subordinated, interest on 2.C% 4.€% 5.1%
Senior, no-retained 13.2% 0.C% 0.C%
Agency RMBS 12.2% 28.8% 23.2%
Securitized loan 4.%% 8.2% 12.1%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 55.% 59.(% 52.1%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 44.1% 41.(% 47.2%
Annualized yield on average earning assets duhiagpérioc 9.02% 7.71% 6.37%
Annualized cost of funds on average borrowed fuhdig the perioc 4.58% 1.67% 1.51%

* Excludes cash and cash equivale
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As of September 30, 2010, the RMBS in our portfelgre purchased at a net discount to their parevaur RMBS had a weighted
average amortized cost of 71.6% and 69.9% at Sdyete®0, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Unamortized Unamortized Unrealized Unrealized
Principal Valut Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 848,33: $ 338,34: $ (43,589 $ 29517 $ (107,466 $ 1,065,14!
Subordinatet 4,441,90! 58,75( (2,692,661 239,44 (180,529 1,866,91.
Senior, no-retained 2,013,42. 86,51« (130,149 78,18¢ (80,16%) 1,967,81.
Agency RMBS 1,782,06! 58,67( - 44,50« (1,050 1,884,19.
Total $ 9,08573 $ 542,27¢ $ (2,866,39) $ 391,65( $ (369,200 $  6,784,06.
December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross
Unamortized Unamortized Unrealized Unrealized
Principal Valut Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 2,757,21 $ 153 $ (628,209 $ 83,94t $ (192,079 $ 2,022,401
Subordinatet 1,616,03. 10,34¢ (1,239,76) 65,99¢ (76,14% 376,45¢
Agency RMBS 1,616,45I 55,08 (29 20,761 (2,240 1,690,02!
Total $ 5,989,69. $ 66,96 $ (1,868,00) $ 170,70¢ $ (270,469 $  4,088,89

The following table presents the annualized yialtulated on our RMBS portfolio for the quartersieth September 30, 2010 and
December 31, 2009. The figure presented for essbta&lass is the annualized interest income eanméide asset class during the quarter,
divided by the average of the beginning and endimgrtized cost of the asset class.

Annualized Yield by Asset Cla:
For the Quarter Ende
September 30, 200  December 31, 20(

Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie

Senior 8.1(% 10.82%
Senior, interest onl 29.4% -59.2(%
Subordinatec 19.8¢% 26.6%%
Subordinated, interest on 6.24% 49.32%
Senior, no-retained 11.4(% Not Applicable
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie 3.69% 4.04%

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemtlstated contractual maturities, as they are afteby the contractual lives of the
underlying mortgages, periodic payments of pringigad prepayments of principal. The remainingestatontractual final maturity of the
mortgage loans underlying our portfolio of RMBSgan up to 37 years, but the expected maturitybgestito change based on the
prepayments of the underlying loans. As of Septeribe2010, the average final contractual matwiftthe RMBS portfolio is 28 years, and
as of December 31, 2009, it was 29 years. Theatgtd weighted average months to maturity of tMBR in the tables below are based
upon our prepayment expectations, which are basdmbth proprietary and subscription-based finantiatlels. Our prepayment projections
consider current and expected trends in interéss rinterest rate volatility, steepness of thédyeeirve, the mortgage rate of the outstanding
loan, time to reset and the spread margin of thetre

The constant prepayment rate, or CPR, attemptsettiqh the percentage of principal that will begaiel over a period of time. We
calculate average CPR on a quarterly basis basedtmmical principal paydowns. As interest ratieg rthe rate of re-financings typically
declines, which we expect may result in lower ratiggrepayment and, as a result, a lower portf6IRR. Conversely, as interest rates fall, the
rate of re-financings typically increases, whichex@ect may result in higher rates of prepaymedt as a result, a higher portfolio CPR.
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After the reset date, interest rates on our hyadidistable rate RMBS securities adjust annuallgtas spreads over various LIB(
and Treasury indices. These interest rates aredutoj caps that limit the amount the applicablerist rate can increase during any year,
known as periodic cap, and through the maturitthefapplicable security, known as a lifetime cape Weighted average periodic cap for the
portfolio is an increase of 0.8% and the weightestage maximum lifetime increases for the portfalie 11.6%.

The following tables summarize our RMBS accordimgheir estimated weighted average life classificet at September 30, 2010
and December 31, 2009.

September 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than
one year and
Less than one less than five Greater than

year years five years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 25,17C $ 711,00 $ 328,97: $ 1,065,14!
Subordinatet 6,98¢ 181,68¢ 1,678,23! 1,866,91.
Senior, no-retained 188,42¢ 1,466,46! 312,92 1,967,81.
Agency RMBS - 1,884,109: - 1,884,109:
Total fair value $ 220,58t $ 4,243,34, $ 2,320,13. % 6,784,06:
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 26,73, % 707,02¢ $ 409,33: % 1,143,009
Subordinatec 10,34: 215,30( 1,582,35! 1,807,99.
Senior, no-retained 243,65¢ 1,437,90! 288,22 1,969,79
Agency RMBS - 1,840,73! - 1,840,73!
Total amortized cos $ 280,73. $ 4,200,97. $ 2,27991. % 6,761,61

December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than
one year and
Less than on¢ less than five Greater than

year years five years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 20,53: % 1,520,80! $ 481,06: $ 2,022,401
Subordinatec 137 204,48: 171,84 376,45¢
Agency RMBS - 1,690,02! - 1,690,02!
Total fair value $ 20,67C $ 341531 $ 652,90 $ 4,088,89.
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 20,54¢ % 1,631,46. $ 478,53( % 2,130,54i
Subordinatet 76 244,93 141,59 386,60
Agency RMBS - 1,671,50; - 1,671,50;
Total amortized cos $ 20,62 $ 3,547,900 $ 620,12: $ 4,188,64!
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Results of Operations for the Quarters and Nine Moths Ended September 30, 2010 and 2009.
Net Income (Loss) Summary

Our net income for the quarter ended Septembe2@®) was $126.4 million, or $0.14 per share. Ouim®me was generated
primarily by interest income on our portfolio. Ouet income for the quarter ended September 3® 2@6 $158.0 million, or $0.24 per
share. We attribute the decrease in our net inqgmmshare for the quarter ended September 30, @0tOmpared to September 30, 2009 to
the absence of realized gains on sales of invessntieat are now recorded as financings pursuafso 810.

Our net income for the nine months ended SepteBM®e2010 was $376.6 million, or $0.49 per sharer @t income was generated
primarily by interest income on our portfolio. Ougt income for the nine months ended Septembe2(®BIY was $228.5 million, or $0.51 per
share. We attribute the decrease in our net inqunshare for the nine months ended Septemb&03®, as compared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2009 to the timing of the gemdmt of proceeds from a secondary offering, whvels completed on June 28, 2010, of
115,000,000 shares of our common stock.

The table below presents the net income (loss) samfor the quarters and nine months ended Septed@h@010 and 2009.
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Net Income (Loss) Summary
(dollars in thousands, except for share and peestata)

(unaudited)
For the Quarters Ende For the Nine Months Ende
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 140,40 $ 104,69 $ 402,91: $ 197,77:
Interest expens 10,527 9,191 25,09¢ 26,55:
Interest income, ne¢-retainec 58,09( - 158,78 -
Interest expense, n-retainec 32,23% - 87,48¢ -
Net interest income (expens 155,73: 95,49: 449,10« 171,22.
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (1,319 (6,209 (48,747 (14,789
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other comgretive
income (loss 43€ 4,024 38,43: 6,104
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (879 (2,185 (10,319 (8,680
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (13,587 - (24,820) -
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 2,032 74,50¢ 2,37¢ 87,45¢
Realized losses on principal wi-downs of no-Agency RMBS (2,519 (61) (3,799 (61)
Total other gains (losse (14,06¢) 74,44 (26,23%) 87,39¢
Net investment income (los 140,78! 167,75! 412 55! 249,93
Other expenses
Management fe 11,31¢ 8,64¢ 28,69t 17,18¢
Provision for loan losse 482 47 2,112 1,41C
General and administrative expen 1,79¢ 1,057 4,361 2,828
Total other expense 13,59¢ 9,75¢ 35,17« 21,42:
Income (loss) before income taxes 127,18 158,00: 377,37 228,51¢
Income taxe: 752 - 758 1
Net income (loss) $ 126,43 $ 158,00 $ 376,62: $ 228,51!
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute $ 014 $ 024 $ 0.4¢ $ 0.51
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 883,147,72 670,324,86 773,777,43 452,016,98
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income (loss $ 126,43¢ $ 158,00. $ 376,62: $ 228,51!
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, n 20,40¢ 238,96¢ 110,46! 292,06:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includeatkt income
(loss) for othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 87¢ 2,18¢ 10,31¢ 8,68(
Reclassification adjustment for realized lossesn&ancluded in
net income (loss 48E (74,447 1,41¢ (87,395
Other comprehensive income (los 21,77 166,70 122,19¢ 213,34¢
Comprehensive income (los $ 148,20t $ 324,70¢ $ 498,82 $ 441,86

Net Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $8.8 billion &l ldillion for the quarters ended September 3@024hd 2009, respectively, and
$8.2 billion and $3.7 billion for the nine monthsded September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.inBarest income was $198.5 million
and $104.7 million for the quarters ended SepterBBeR010 and 2009, respectively, and $561.7 mikiod $197.8 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, resplgcti®@ur interest income increase resulted froeniticrease in our interest earning as
which followed our 2009 and 2010 secondary offegsinghe annualized yield on our portfolio was 9.028 7.71% for the quarters ended
September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and®d 7.20% for the nine months ended Septembe&t(3M and 2009, respectively. The
increase in the annualized yield is attributechtyéased interest earning assets and accretiossetsgurchased at significant discounts tc
with the proceeds from our secondary offerings.
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Our net interest income, which equals interestimedess interest expense, totaled $155.7 milli@h%2s.5 million for the quarters
ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectivaly$449.1 million and $171.2 million for the nine milbs ended September 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively. Our net interest spread, whiptnals the yield on our average assets for theg&ss the average cost of funds for the
period, was 4.44% and 6.04% for the quarters eSagdember 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and®drt 4.91% for the nine months
ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectivelyatthkibute the increase in net interest incontbédncrease in our portfolio of higher
yielding interest earning assets following our setayy offerings. We attribute the decrease irintetest spread to increased debt issue
amortization and increased interest expense assdaiath a full quarter of interest rate swap paytae

The table below shows our average assets heldljritdgest earned on assets, yield on averageesttearning assets, average debt
balance, interest expense, average cost of fuet&terest income, and net interest rate spreathéoquarters ended September 30, 2010,
June 30, 2010, March 31, 2010, December 31, 20@bSaptember 30, 2009 and the year ended Decerhp2039.

Net Interest Incom

Yield on
Average Net
Average Interest Interest Average Average Net Interest
Earning Earned or  Earning Debt Interest Cost of Interest Rate
Assets Held Assets * Assets Balance Expense Funds Income Spreac

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the quarter ended

September 30, 201 $ 8,801,53. $ 198,46: 9.02% $3,733,89: $ 42,76« 4.56% $ 155,69 4.40%
For the quarter ended June

30, 201C $ 8,640,37 $ 183,34¢ 8.4%% $3,906,06. $ 28,61¢ 2.93% $ 154,73 5.56%
For the quarter ended Marc

31, 201C $ 7,162,94. $ 179,84 10.02 $3,660,33- $ 41,20: 4.5(% $ 138,64: 5.5%
For the year ended Deceml

31, 200¢ $ 4,328,89. $ 298,53 6.9(% $1,724,69: $ 35,08: 2.03% $ 263,45t 4.87%
For the quarter ended

December 31, 200 $ 6,329,58 $ 100,76! 6.37% $2,266,35 $ 8,53( 1.51% $ 92,23t 4.86%
For the quarter ended

September 30, 20C $ 5,433,32. $ 104,69 7.71% $2,207,44. $  9,19i 1.67% $ 95,490 6.04%

* Excludes cash and cash equivale
Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $3.7 billion a2@ $illion and total interest expense of $42.8iorland $9.2 million for the
guarters ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, rasdectWe had average borrowed funds of $3.8dalland $1.5 billion and total interest
expense of $112.6 million and $26.6 million for tiire months ended September 30, 2010 and 20¢®atdgely. Our annualized cost of
funds was 4.58% and 1.67% for the quarters endpte®der 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and 3.898@.29% for the nine months
ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectivéig.inCrease in interest expense is related priynarin increase in the secured debt, non-
retained, that we recorded with the adoption orudanl, 2010 of ASC Topic 810 as compared to tretqguand nine months ended
September 30, 2009.

The table below shows our average borrowed fumtisrast expense, average cost of funds, averagmonth LIBOR, average Six-
month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR relative termge six-month LIBOR, and average cost of funligive to average one- and six-
month LIBOR for the quarters ended September 30020une 30, 2010, March 31, 2010, December 319,206 September 30, 2009 and
the year ended December 31, 2009.
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Average Cost of Func

Average Average
One- Cost of Average
Month Funds Cost of
LIBOR Relative tc Funds
Average Relative tc Average Relative tc
Average Average One- Average Average One- Average
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Six-Month  Six-Month Month Six-Month
Funds Expense Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the quarter ended

September 30, 201 $3,733,89. $ 42,76« 4.58% 0.2%% 0.5%% (0.3(%) 4.2%% 3.9%9%
For the quarter ended Jun

30, 201C $3,906,06. $ 28,61¢ 2.9%% 0.32% 0.63% (0.31%) 2.61% 2.3(%
For the quarter ended Mal

31, 201C $3,660,33: $ 41,20¢ 4.5(% 0.23% 0.4(% (0.17%) 4.271% 4.1(%
For the year ended

December 31, 200 $1,724,69: $ 35,08: 2.05% 0.3%% 1.12% (0.7<%) 1.7(% 0.91%
For the quarter ended

December 31, 200 $2,266,35 $  8,53( 1.51% 0.24% 0.52% (0.28%) 1.27% 0.9%%
For the quarter ended

September 30, 20( $2,207,44. $  9,19i 1.67% 0.27% 0.84% (0.57%) 1.4(% 0.82%

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended September 30, 2010, wkRNIBS with a carrying value of $206.0 million fieralized gains of $2.0
million. During the nine months ended September2Bd0 we sold assets with a carrying value of $28&llion which resulted in net gains
of approximately $2.4 million. During the quarterd nine months ended September 30, 2009 we ssdtsasith a carrying value of $924.5
million and $1.5 billion which resulted in net gaiaf approximately $74.5 million and $87.5 milliagespectively.

Secured Debt Financing Transactions
We did not re-securitize RMBS during the quarteteshSeptember 30, 2010.

In addition, during the quarter ended SeptembefB00, we recorded no additional non-recourse Gimanwith third party investors
related to re-securitizations executed in prioiquis. For the nine months ended September 30,, 204 @inanced $1.1 billion of AAA-rated
fixed rate bonds with third party investors for pedceeds of $1.1 billion.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Exges

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $11.3 million &8 million for the quarters ended Septembe2820 and 2009,
respectively, and $28.7 million and $17.2 millian the nine months ended September 30, 2010 ar@®] &&pectively. The management fee
is based on our stockholders’ equity and the irs@éa the management fee for the quarter and norghm ended September 30, 2010 and
September 30, 2009 resulted from the increasedyedué to the completion of our secondary offerinfsommon stock during 2009 and
2010.

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses, idiclg the provision for loan losses, were $2.3 arilland $1.1 million for the
quarters ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, reghgcand $6.5 million and $4.2 million for thene months ended September 30, 2010
and 2009, respectively. G&A expenses increasedglthe period due primarily to an increase irunagce, auditing, custodial, and NYSE
listing fees.

Total expenses as a percentage of average totdbassre 0.77% and 0.91% for the quarters ende®épr 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, and 0.79% and 0.97% for the nine moerhded September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectiValy.decrease in total expenses as a
percentage of average total assets is the resatt mfcrease in the asset base due to the completiwo secondary offerings of common
stock during the second quarter of 2010.
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During the quarter ended September 30, 2010 webtewed FIDAC approximately $177,000 for our pr@anadrtion of rent,
telephone, utilities, office furniture, equipmemtachinery and other office, internal and overhegkases of FIDAC and its affiliates requi
for our operations. During the quarter ended Sebpézr80, 2009, FIDAC waived its right to requestmeursement from the Company for
these expenses.

The table below shows our total management feeGRW expenses as compared to average total assé@mvanage equity for the
quarters ended September 30, 2010, June 30, 204@hN31, 2010, December 31, 2009, and Septemb&089, and for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

Management Fees, Loan Loss Provision and G&A Exgeand Operating Expense Ra

Total Management  Total Management

Total Management  Fee, Loan Loss Fee, Loan Loss
Fee, Loan Loss  Provision and G&#  Provision and G&#
Provision and G&# Expenses/Total Expenses/Average
Expense! Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended September 30, - $ 13,59¢ 0.77% 1.87%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 11,69¢ 0.72% 1.8(%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 9,88( 0.75% 1.7%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 32,86 0.95% 2.25%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 11,44¢ 1.02% 2.12%
For the quarter ended September 30, - $ 9,75:% 0.91% 1.8%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $126.4 million and $158.0 millfor the quarters ended September 30, 2010 ar@l 2€§pectively, and $376.6
million and $228.5 million for the nine months eddgeptember 30, 2010 and 2009. The table belowsbur net interest income, gains
(losses) on sale of assets, unrealized gains pssenterest rate swaps, total expenses, incameach as a percentage of average equity,
and the return on average equity for the quartede@ September 30, 2010, June 30, 2010, March(dD, December 31, 2009, and
September 30, 2009 and the year ended Decemb203d, Our return on average equity decreased 3@56% for the quarter ended
September 30, 2009 to 17.39% for the quarter eBéptember 30, 2010 and 24.82% for the nine momtedSeptember 30, 2009 to
19.97% for the nine months ended September 30, @0&@o the to the absence of recognizing realiggas on sales of investments
subsequent to the adoption of ASC 810 on Janua2@1Q.

Components of Return on Average Eqt

Realized Unrealized
Gains Gains (Losses
(Losses) on on Interest Return
Net Interest Sales and Rate Total Income on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average Swaps/Averac Expenses/Avera Tax/Averagr Average
Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity

(Ratios have been annualize

For the quarter ended September

2010 21.42% (0.1%) (1.87%) (1.87%) (0.1(%) 17.3%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 23.7¢% (1.119%) (1.73%) (1.8(%) 0.0(% 19.14%
For the quarter ended March 31,

2010 25.0% (0.57%) 0.0(% (1.7<%) 0.0% 22.7%
For the year ended December 31,

2009 18.03% 6.41% 0.0(% (2.25%) 0.0%  22.1%
For the quarter ended December

2009 17.0% 2.72% 0.0(% (2.12%) 0.0% 17.6“%
For the quarter ended September

2009 18.4%% 13.9%% 0.0(% (1.8%) 0.0%  30.5%%

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requeeats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, fund and mainte
RMBS, mortgage loans and other assets, pay dividand other general business needs. Our prirgijpates of capital and funds for
additional investments primarily include earningsfi our investments, borrowings under securitizegiand re-securitizations, repurchase
agreements and other financing facilities, and @eds from equity offerings. We expect these sauntdinancing will be sufficient to meet
our short-term liquidity needs.
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We expect to continue to borrow funds in the fofmepurchase agreements and, subject to markeitzorg] other types of
financing. The terms of the repurchase transadt@rowings under our master repurchase agreergentrally conform to the terms in the
standard master repurchase agreement as publightbd Becurities Industry and Financial Marketsokgation, or SIFMA, as to repayment,
margin requirements and the segregation of allr#ezziwe have initially sold under the repurchtts@saction. In addition, each lender
typically requires that we include supplementaingiand conditions to the standard master repur@meement. Typical supplemental tel
and conditions include changes to the margin maartee requirements, required haircuts, and purgbrése maintenance requirements,
requirements that all controversies related ta¢pairchase agreement be litigated in a particukésdiction and cross default
provisions. These provisions will differ for eaahour lenders and will not be determined untileveage in a specific repurchase transac

For our short-term (one year or less) and long-tégmidity, which include investing and complianaéh collateralization
requirements under our repurchase agreement®(gléuged collateral decreases in value or inteateof margin calls created by
prepayments of the pledged collateral), we alsparlthe cash flow from investments, primarily ntantprincipal and interest payments tc
received on our RMBS and whole mortgage loans, flashfrom the sale of securities as well as anynpry securities offerings authorized
by our board of directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe sgets will be sufficient to enak
us to meet anticipated short-term (one year o) legsdity requirements such as to fund our inmestt activities, pay fees under our
management agreement, fund our distributions tktmlders and pay general corporate expenses. Hoywawecline in the value of our
collateral or an increase in prepayment rates anbatly above our expectations could cause a teanpdiquidity shortfall due to the timing
of the necessary margin calls on the financingngreenents and the actual receipt of the cash retatpdncipal paydowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfiylimuidity requirements, we may have to sell istveents or issue debt or additional equity
securities in a common stock offering. If requirdd sale of RMBS or whole mortgage loans at prioe®r than their carrying value would
result in losses and reduced income.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greater tham gear) liquidity and capital resource requiremavitsbe subject to obtaining
additional debt financing and equity capital. Sebje our maintaining our qualification as a REEveell as market conditions, we expect to
use a number of sources to finance our investmirtsiding repurchase agreements, warehouse fasjlgecuritization, commercial paper
and term financing CDOs. Such financing will degp@m market conditions for capital raises and lierinvestment of any proceeds. If we
unable to renew, replace or expand our sourcesafding on substantially similar terms, it may @an adverse effect on our business and
results of operations. Upon liquidation, holder@of debt securities and shares of preferred sinddenders with respect to other borrowi
will receive a distribution of our available asspt®r to the holders of our common stock.

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&tely9 million and $21.0 million at September 301@@nd September 30, 2009,
respectively. Our cash and cash equivalents deededue to normal quarterly fluctuations in cadarxzes related to the timing of principal
and interest payments, repayments of debt, and pgszhases and sales.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $225.4 million and $102.3 million for théne months ended September
30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The cash provigeoberating activities increased due to the iasedn net interest income earned by the
portfolio which resulted from the increase in im&rearning assets to $7.2 billion in investmeh®&eptember 30, 2010 as compared to $4.3
billion at September 30, 2009.

Our investing activities used net cash of $903.lianiand $2.5 billion for the nine months endeg®enber 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. During the nine months ended Sepéerdf, 2010 we utilized cash to purchase $2.3ohilin securities which were offset by
proceeds from asset sales of $298.3 million amtjal payments of $1.1 billion. During the ninemths ended September 30, 2009 we
utilized cash to purchase $4.5 billion in secusied sold $1.6 billion and received principal payts of $403.2 million. The increase in
principal payments resulted from the larger poitfalt September 30, 2010 as compared to Septerib@089.
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Our financing activities provided net cash of $&#iillion and $2.4 billion for the nine months eddgeptember 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The nine months ended Septembe2(®() reflected net payments on repurchase agresroe®407.2 million as compared to
net proceeds of $1.0 billion for the nine monthdezhSeptember 30, 2009. In addition, the nine hwended September 30, 2010 reflected
net proceeds from securitized debt borrowings &2%6 million. During the nine months ended Septend®, 2009 we had no proceeds from
securitized debt borrowings. This increase iategl to the adoption of ASC 860 and ASC 810 onakgnl, 2010 which required us to
consolidate certain reecuritization transactions completed during 202@ wvere previously recorded as sales of investsrestvell as certa
re-securitizations completed during 2010. In additthe dividend payment for the nine months erflleptember 30, 2010 increased over the
dividend payment for the nine months ended SepteBte2009 by $302.7 million due to an increasedhiber of shares outstanding and the
increase in the dividends per share declared by us.

At September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, thainéng maturities of repurchase agreements for BNdBpresented below.

September 30, 20 December 31, 20(
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ 198,67¢ $ =
1-30 days (1. 778,59t 1,772,66.
30 to 59 day: 151,59! 62,24
60 to 89 day: 230,63« -
90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 208,71¢ 140,49°
Total $ 1,568,22. $ 1,975,40:

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates totasB30 million as of December 31, 2009. There wereepurchase agreemen ;
with affiliates as of September 30, 20

Increases in short-term interest rates could neglgitaffect the valuation of our mortgage-relatsdeds, which could limit our
borrowing ability or cause our lenders to initiatargin calls. Amounts due upon maturity of our repase agreements will be funded
primarily through the rollover/reissuance of refnase agreements and monthly principal and intpagsnents received on our mortgage-
backed securities.

We are not required by our investment guidelinem#intain any specific debt-to-equity ratio as ved#idve the appropriate leverage
for the particular assets we are financing depend$e credit quality and risk of those assetsweler, our master repurchase agreements
may require us to maintain certain debt-to-equatjos. At September 30, 2010 and December 31,,20i0%otal recourse debt was
approximately $1.6 billion and $2.0 billion whickpresented a recourse debt-to-equity ratio of @BdL0.9:1, respectively.

At September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, wahawlaterial commitments for capital expenditures.

Stockholders’ Equity

On September 24, 2009, we adopted a dividend rsiment and share purchase plan, or DRSPP. The PR&Rides holders of
record of our common stock an opportunity to autiically reinvest all or a portion of their cashtdisutions received on common stock in
additional shares of our common stock as well asdke optional cash payments to purchase shamg @bmmon stock. Persons who are
not already stockholders may also purchase our aamstock under the plan through optional cash paysne The DRSPP is administerec
the Administrator, The Bank of New York Mellon. iBng the nine months ended September 30, 2010 ised$263,000 by issuing 67,596
shares through the DRSPP. During the nine monttiedeBeptember 30, 2009 no shares were issued thedBRSPP.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2010, wWamecdividends to common shareholders totaling8® fillion, or $0.18 per
share, all of which was paid on October 28, 20D0ring the quarter ended December 31, 2009, weadsgtidividends to common
shareholders totaling $113.8 million, or $0.17 geare.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstaraingf September 30, 2010 or December 31, 2009.
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On March 31, 2010, we announced the sale of 83)000shares of common stock at a price of $3.6klpare in a public
offering. In addition, the underwriters exercisgkd option to purchase an additional 12,750,00@eshaf common stock to cover
overallotments. The aggregate net proceeds wéveztbefore expenses in this sale were approxim&®52.7 million. This sale was
completed on April 7, 2010.

On June 22, 2010, we announced the sale of 100008hares of common stock at a price of $3.6Elpare in a public offering. |
addition, the underwriters exercised the optiopumhase an additional 15,000,000 shares of constomhk to cover overallotments. The
aggregate net proceeds we received before expentgs sale were approximately $415.0 million. iSTeale was completed on June 28,
2010.

Related Party Transactions
Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007, we entered into a manageagegaement with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC idited to receive a
management fee and, in certain circumstancesirartation fee and reimbursement of certain expeasafescribed in the management
agreement. Such fees and expenses do not hadeafixkdeterminable payments. The management fegable quarterly in arrears in an
amount equal to 1.50% per annum, calculated quarte#frour stockholders’ equity (as defined in thanagement agreement). FIDAC uses
the proceeds from its management fee in part tacpaypensation to its officers and employees whuwitlostanding that certain of them also
are our officers, receive no cash compensatiorcijréom us. The management fee will be reduted not below zero, by our proportion
share of any CDO management fees FIDAC receivesrinection with the CDOs in which we invest, basedhe percentage of equity we
hold in such CDOs.

Financing Arrangements with Affiliates

In April 2009, we entered into a Securities Indystnd Financial Markets Association standard prepd form Master Repurchase
Agreement with RCap Securities, Inc, an affilialéhis standard agreement does not contain anysbquidity, net worth or other similar
types of positive or negative covenants. Ratlier agreement contains covenants that require §er laind seller of securities to deliver
collateral or securities, and similar covenantsaolttdare customary in the form Master Repurchaseekgemt. At September 30, 2010 and
December 31, 2009 we had no financing under thiseagent. We have been in compliance with all caménof this agreement since we
entered into this agreement.

In March 2008, we entered into a Securities Inguatid Financial Markets Association standard preed form Master Repurchase
Agreement with Annaly. This standard agreemensdu contain any sort of liquidity, net worth dher similar types of positive or negat
covenants. Rather, the agreement contains cowettaitrequire the buyer and seller of securitedeliver collateral or securities, and sim
covenants which are customary in the form MastgruRehase Agreement. At September 30, 2010 we bdithancing under this
agreement. At December 31, 2009, the Company dei$259.0 million under this agreement at a wedlaverage rate of 1.72%. We have
been in compliance with all covenants of this agrest since we entered into this agreement.

Restricted Stock Grants

During the quarter and nine months ended SepteB8the2010, 48,125 and 114,075 shares of restri¢tatt sve had awarded to our
Manager’'s employees vested and 17,083 and 19, #6stvere forfeited or cancelled, respectively. didenot grant any incentive awards
during the quarter or nine months ended Septemhe2®L0.

At September 30, 2010 there are approximately @b/uhvested shares of restricted stock issued plogrees of FIDAC. For the
guarter and nine months ended September 30, 26dhensation expense less general and administiste associated with the
amortization of the fair value of the restrictedc#t totaled $114,000 and $365,000, respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables summarize our contractual gdtions at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009
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September 30, 201

Greater Than

Within One One to Three Three to or Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Years Five Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:
Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1568220 $ - % - $ - $ 1,568,222
Securitized dek 568,69t 861,40: 377,40t 479,09° 2,286,601
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreel
1) 1,61t - - - 1,61t
Interest expense on securitized debl 102,05¢ 136,02( 79,72¢ 201,11¢ 518,92(
Total $ 2,240,558 $ 997,42, $ 457,13 $ 680,21 $  4,375,35
(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaiféSeptember 30
2010.
December 31, 20C
Greater Than
Within One One to Three Three to or Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Years Five Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:
Repurchase agreements for RMBS $ 1,975,440 $ - 8 - $ - $ 197540
Securitized dek 37,19: 70,88t 59,38: 240,94! 408,40:
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreel
2 1,05(C - - - 1,05(C
Interest expense on securitized debl 19,70¢ 36,82¢ 30,30¢ 132,41¢ 219,25¢
Total $ 203335 $ 107,71 $ 89,68¢ $ 373,36 $  2,604,11

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates for $258illion are included in balanc
(2) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaifeDecember 31,
20009.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidi@tetities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which wouldehlaeen established for the purpose of facilitatifidoalance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtlveg,have not guaranteed any obligations of uncaeteld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any sechities. As such, we are not materially expaseahy market, credit, liquidity or
financing risk that could arise if we had engagediich relationships.

Capital Resources
At September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2010, weadadaterial commitments or capital expenditures.
Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetedsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxamteme, determined without
regard to the deduction for dividends paid andudiclg any net capital gains. We intend to pay ragguarterly dividends to our
stockholders. Before we pay any dividend, whetbetX.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwisgchvwould only be paid out of
available cash to the extent permitted under ouel@use and repurchase facilities, we must firgtrheth our operating requirements and
scheduled debt service on our warehouse lines tued debt payable.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities aredngst rate sensitive in nature. As a result, isteres and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chaigénterest rates do not necessarily correlatk inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements apgved in accordance with GAAP and our distribiindill be determined by our board of
directors consistent with our obligation to distitid to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKRlde income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, aativities and balance sheet are measured witherate to historical cost and/or fair market
value without considering inflation.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, market value risk and real
estate risk. While we do not seek to avoid risk plately, we believe the risk can be quantified froistorical experience and we seek to
actively manage that risk, to earn sufficient congagion to justify taking those risks and to mamtapital levels consistent with the risks
undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments and face more credit risk on assetswn which are rated below
“AAA”. The credit risk related to these investmismpertains to the ability and willingness of trrowers to pay, which is assessed before
credit is granted or renewed and periodically neri@ throughout the loan or security term. We belithat residual loan credit quality is
primarily determined by the borrowers’ credit ptedi and loan characteristics. FIDAC uses a compisahe credit review process. FIDAC's
analysis of loans includes borrower profiles, a#i agvaluation and appraisal data. FIDAC uses amagating factors such as liquid assets,
low loan to value ratios and job stability in evating loans. FIDAGS resources include a proprietary portfolio manag@mystem, as well
third party software systems. FIDAC utilizes adhparty due diligence firm to perform an independerderwriting review to insure
compliance with existing guidelines. FIDAC seldcians for review predicated on risk-based critetieh as loan-to-value, borrower’s credit
score(s) and loan size. FIDAC also outsources wwitarg services to review higher risk loans, eitdee to borrower credit profiles or
collateral valuation issues. In addition to statatsampling techniques, FIDAC creates adversditcamd valuation samples, which we
individually review. FIDAC rejects loans that f&il conform to our standards. FIDAC accepts onlyéhlmans which meet our underwriting
criteria. Once we own a loan, FIDAC's surveillamrecess includes ongoing analysis through our jEtary data warehouse and servicer
files. Additionally, the non-Agency RMBS and othABS which we acquire for our portfolio are reviewsdFIDAC to ensure that they
satisfy our risk based criteria. FIDAC'’s reviewrafn-Agency RMBS and other ABS includes utilizing firoprietary portfolio management
system. FIDAC's review of non-Agency RMBS and otA®S is based on quantitative and qualitative asialgf the risk-adjusted returns on
non-Agency RMBS and other ABS present.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many @ast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international
economic and political considerations and othetofacbeyond our control. We are subject to inter&®t risk in connection with our
investments and our related debt obligations, whiehgenerally repurchase agreements, warehousefscsecuritization, commercial paf
and term financing CDOs. Our repurchase agreenagntsvarehouse facilities may be of limited duratioat are periodically refinanced at
current market rates. We intend to mitigate thék through utilization of derivative contracts,marily interest rate swap agreements.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, oieifices between the income from our investmermoanborrowing costs. Most of
our warehouse facilities and repurchase agreenpeotde financing based on a floating rate of iegticalculated on a fixed spread over
LIBOR. The fixed spread varies depending on the typunderlying asset which collateralizes therfitiag. Accordingly, the portion of our
portfolio which consists of floating interest ratesets will be match-funded utilizing our expeaedrces of short-term financing, while our
fixed interest rate assets will not be match-fund@ating periods of rising interest rates, the baiing costs associated with our investments
tend to increase while the income earned on oedfirterest rate investments may remain substhntiathanged. This will result in a
narrowing of the net interest spread between tlate assets and borrowings and may even resiaisses. Further, during this portion of the
interest rate and credit cycles, defaults couldgase and result in credit losses to us, whichdcadlersely affect our liquidity and operating
results. Such delinquencies or defaults could ladés@ an adverse effect on the spread betweenstiggiening assets and interest-bearing
liabilities. Hedging techniques are partly basedssumed levels of prepayments of our fixed-ratehaorid adjustable-rate mortgage loans
and RMBS. If prepayments are slower or faster msumed, the life of the mortgage loans and RMBSowilonger or shorter, which would
reduce the effectiveness of any hedging strategiesiay use and may cause losses on such transadtiedging strategies involving the use
of derivative securities are highly complex and rpayduce volatile returns.
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Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@fthanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We
face the risk that the fair value of our asset$ iwdrease or decrease at different rates thanothadrr liabilities, including our hedging
instruments. We primarily assess our interestniakeby estimating the duration of our assets &edduration of our liabilities. Duration
essentially measures the market price volatilitfircdncial instruments as interest rates changeg®verally calculate duration using various
financial models and empirical data. Different misdind methodologies can produce different duratiembers for the same securities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signifigamhen interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points from current levels. Thoeegfthe volatility in the fair value of our assetaild increase significantly when interest
rates change beyond 100 basis points. In addibibrer factors impact the fair value of our intemage-sensitive investments and hedging
instruments, such as the shape of the yield cunagket expectations as to future interest rate @gsiand other market conditions.
Accordingly, in the event of changes in actualiiest rates, the change in the fair value of ouetassould likely differ from that shown abc
and such difference might be material and adverseit stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdetging mortgages are
typically subject to periodic and lifetime intereate caps and floors, which limit the amount byclitthe security’s interest yield may change
during any given period. However, our borrowingtsgsursuant to our financing agreements will nostgject to similar restrictions.
Therefore, in a period of increasing interest ratgerest rate costs on our borrowings could iaseawithout limitation by caps, while the
interest-rate yields on our adjustalsdgée mortgage loans and RMBS would effectivelyitvetéd. This problem will be magnified to the ext:
we acquire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not basedortgages which are fully indexed. In additittre mortgages or the underlying
mortgages in an RMBS may be subject to periodiemayt caps that result in some portion of the isteloeing deferred and added to the
principal outstanding. This could result in ouragt of less cash income on our adjustable-ratégages or RMBS than we need in order to
pay the interest cost on our related borrowinggseéHfactors could lower our net interest incomeamse a net loss during periods of rising
interest rates, which would harm our financial déind, cash flows and results of operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitiohtybrid adjustable-rate mortgages and RMBS witirdwings that, after the effect
of hedging, have interest rates based on indicéseypricing terms similar to, but of somewhat shortetumities than, the interest rate indi
and re-pricing terms of the mortgages and RMBS sThumost cases the interest rate indices andicaygp terms of our mortgage assets and
our funding sources will not be identical, theregating an interest rate mismatch between assdtlabilities. Therefore, our cost of funds
would likely rise or fall more quickly than wouldipearnings rate on assets. During periods of dhgrigterest rates, such interest rate
mismatches could negatively impact our financialdition, cash flows and results of operations. Titigate interest rate mismatches, we r
utilize the hedging strategies discussed above.a@alysis of risks is based on FIDAXxperience, estimates, models and assumptioast
analyses rely on models which utilize estimatefainfvalue and interest rate sensitivity. Actuabeemic conditions or implementation of
investment decisions by our management may prodastats that differ significantly from the estimat@nd assumptions used in our models
and the projected results shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolion@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselygtteduring any period as a result
of changing interest rates. The following tablaufifies the potential changes in net interestime@nd portfolio value should interest rates
go up or down 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assuthmgield curves of the rate shocks will be patdth each other and the current yield
curve. All changes in income and value are measaseercentage changes from the projected ne¢shi@come and portfolio value at the
base interest rate scenario. The base interesscahario assumes interest rates at Septemb20BD and various estimates regarding
prepayment and all activities are made at eacH t#wate shock. Actual results could differ siggantly from these estimates.
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September 30, 201

Projected Projected
Percentage Percentage
Change in Net Change in
Interest Portfolio
Change in Interest Ra Income % Value %
-75 Basis Point (21.42%) 4.5¢%
-50 Basis Point (16.19%) 3.01%
-25 Basis Point (10.6%%) 1.4<%
Base Interest Ra
+25 Basis Point 4.42% (1.4€%)
+50 Basis Point 7.94% (2.8%%)
+75 Basis Point 11.46% (4.25%)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums and discounts on such invessmeéihte amortized or
accreted against interest income. In general, ere@se in prepayment rates will accelerate the @ation of purchase premiums, thereby
reducing the interest income earned on the invegBn€onversely, discounts on such investmenta@reeted into interest income. In
general, an increase in prepayment rates will acatd the accretion of purchase discounts, thaérelbgasing the interest income earned on
the investments.

Extension Risk

FIDAC computes the projected weighted-averagedtifeur investments based on assumptions regardangate at which the
borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgagesgémeral, when fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-ratetgage loans or RMBS are acquired
with borrowings, we may, but are not required tdeeinto an interest rate swap agreement or ¢tbeging instrument that effectively fixes
our borrowing costs for a period close to the andited average life of the fixed-rate portion of tielated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates because thmotving costs are fixed for the duration of theefi-rate portion of the related
assets. However, if prepayment rates decreasesing interest rate environment, the life of theed-rate portion of the related assets could
extend beyond the term of the swap agreement er bddging instrument. This could have a negatiygaict on our results from operations,
as borrowing costs would no longer be fixed aftierénd of the hedging instrument while the incoaraed on the hybrid adjustable-rate
assets would remain fixed. This situation may aksese the market value of our hybrid adjustable-@asets to decline, with little or no
offsetting gain from the related hedging transargidn extreme situations, we may be forced toasséets to maintain adequate liquidity,
which could cause us to incur losses.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind &sses excluded from earnings and
reported in other comprehensive income. The estidhair value of these securities fluctuates prilpaiue to changes in interest rates,
prepayment speeds, market liquidity, credit quahtyd other factors. Generally, in a rising intérate environment, the estimated fair value
of these securities would be expected to decreaswersely, in a decreasing interest rate environtiee estimated fair value of these
securities would be expected to increase. As maKatility increases or liquidity decreases, faig value of our investments may be
adversely impacted. If we are unable to readiligimbindependent pricing to validate our estimdtadvalue of securities in the portfolio, the
fair value gains or losses recorded in other cohmgmsive income may be adversely affected.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayreahproperty directly in the future. Residenpabperty values are subject to
volatility and may be affected adversely by a numdfdactors, including, but not limited to, natanregional and local economic conditions
(which may be adversely affected by industry slowds and other factors); local real estate conditi@ch as an oversupply of housing);
changes or continued weakness in specific indisgtgynents; construction quality, age and designpdeaphic factors; and retroactive
changes to building or similar codes. In additidecreases in property values reduce the valuesafdltateral and the potential proceeds
available to a borrower to repay our loans, whiohl@ also cause us to suffer losses.
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Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REfatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential
mortgage loans, RMBS, and other assets and redafstdagainst the effects of major interest ratengha. We generally seek to manage our
risk by:

» monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasgex and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

« attempting to structure our financing agreementsate a range of different maturities, terms, amatipns and interest rate
adjustment period:

« using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, ogiaaps, floors and forward sales to adjust therédst rate sensitivity of our
investments and our borrowing

« using securitization financing to lower averaget @igunds relative to shoterm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and unigy dates of the investments
included in the securitization; al

« actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theestteate indices, interest rate adjustment perais,gross reset margins of our
investments and the interest rate indices and &x@rg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thprieing of assets and
liabilities. We attempt to control risks associhteéith interest rate movements. Methods for euviigainterest rate risk include an analysis of
our interest rate sensitivity “gap”, which is thée&rence between interest-earning assets antesttdearing liabilities maturing or re-pricing
within a given time period. A gap is considereaipee when the amount of interest-rate sensitsgets exceeds the amount of interest-rate
sensitive liabilities. A gap is considered negativhen the amount of interest-rate sensitive liddsl exceeds interest-rate sensitive
assets. During a period of rising interest radasegative gap would tend to adversely affectmterést income, while a positive gap would
tend to result in an increase in net interest ireomuring a period of falling interest rates, gative gap would tend to result in an increas
net interest income, while a positive gap woulditemaffect net interest income adversely. Becdiféerent types of assets and liabilities
with the same or similar maturities may react défely to changes in overall market rates or cao$, changes in interest rates may affect
net interest income positively or negatively eviean institution were perfectly matched in eachumiat category.

The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imterest-bearing liabilities at
September 30, 2010. The amounts of assets anlitiegtshown within a particular period were detémed in accordance with the contract
terms of the assets and liabilities, except adplsteate loans, and securities are included irp#hvéd in which their interest rates are first
scheduled to adjust and not in the period in whiely mature and does include the effect of thedésterate swaps. The interest rate
sensitivity of our assets and liabilities in thbléacould vary substantially if based on actuappsenent experience.
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Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than 3

Months 3-12 Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 9,248,17. $ 1,14453. $ 237587 $ 2,351,400 $ 15,019,98
Cash equivalent 11,94¢ - - - 11,94¢
Total rate sensitive asse 9,160,12: 1,144,53. 2,375,87! 2,351,40 15,031,93
Rate sensitive liabilitie 3,258,71I 208,71¢ 450,00( - 3,917,422
Interest rate sensitivity gé $ 590141 % 93581 $ 192587 $ 235140 $ 11,114,50
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ 590141 $ 6,837,221 $ 876309 $ 11,114,550
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap &
percentage of total rate sensitive as 39% 45% 58% 74%

Our analysis of risks is based on FIDAC's expergemstimates, models and assumptions. These asably on models which
utilize estimates of fair value and interest ramsstivity. Actual economic conditions or implent&ton of investment decisions by FIDAC
may produce results that differ significantly frahe estimates and assumptions used in our modelharprojected results shown in the
above tables and in this report. These analysasicocertain forward-looking statements and atgesu to the safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading, “Special Note Regarding Forviamoking Statements.”

56




ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifjor CEO, and Chief Financial Officer, or CFQyiesved and evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of aseldsure controls and procedures (as defined ie R8&-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act) as of the end of the pesavered by this quarterly report. Based on téeiew and evaluation, the CEO and CFO
have concluded that our current disclosure contmésprocedures, as designed and implemented efE) eifective in ensuring that
information regarding the Company and its subsielais made known to our management, includingQi® and CFO, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sand (2) were effective in providing reasonabkueance that information the Company
must disclose in its periodic reports under theuites Exchange Act is recorded, processed, suimethand reported within the time perii
prescribed by the SEC’s rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls
There have been no changes in our “internal cooiret financial reporting” (as defined in Rule 1Ba() under the Securities

Exchange Act) that occurred during the period cegtday this quarterly report that has materialleetféd, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal controls over financial refogt
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be involved in variousiicls and legal actions arising in the ordinary sewf business. In the opinion
management, the ultimate disposition of these msattédl not have a material adverse effect on amsolidated financial statements.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth imstreport, you should carefully consider the feztiscussed in Part I, "ltem 1A. R
Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for $fear ended December 31, 2009, which could matg@diéct our business, financial
condition or future results. The information preseibelow updates and should be read in conjunetitinthe risk factors and information
disclosed in that Form 10-K.

We depend on third-party service providers, inclngimortgage servicers, for a variety of servicelted to our non-Agency
RMBS and whole mortgage loans we may acquire. We, énerefore, subject to the risks associated wtind-party service providers.

We depend on a variety of services provided byltparty service providers related to our non-AgeR&§BS and whole mortgage
loans we may acquire. We rely on the mortgage sersiwho service the mortgage loans backing ourAgency RMBS to, among other
things, collect principal and interest paymentgteunderlying mortgages and perform loss mitigasiervices. Our mortgage servicers and
other service providers to our n&gency RMBS, such as trustees, bond insurance geoviand custodians, may not perform in a manrae
promotes our interests. In addition, recent legihaintended to reduce or prevent foreclosuresudin, among other things, loan
modifications may reduce the value of mortgage ddaacking our non-Agency RMBS or whole mortgagesothat we acquire. Mortgage
servicers may be incentivized by the Federal gawent to pursue such loan modifications, as welbasearance plans and other actions
intended to prevent foreclosure, even if such lmadlifications and other actions are not in the bestests of the beneficial owners of the
mortgage loans. In addition to the recent legistathat creates financial incentives for mortgagmlservicers to modify loans and take other
actions that are intended to prevent foreclosuegsslation has recently been adopted that creasade harbor from liability to creditors for
servicers that undertake loan modifications an@o#ttions that are intended to prevent foreclasutmally, recent laws delay the initiation
or completion of foreclosure proceedings on spedifipes of residential mortgage loans (some foniged period of time), or otherwise lin
the ability of mortgage servicers to take actidra tnay be essential to preserve the value of tivégaige loans underlying the mortgage
servicing rights. Any such limitations are likely tause delayed or reduced collections from moaigagnd generally increase servicing ci
As a result of these recent legislative actions ntortgage loan servicers on which we rely maypeotorm in our best interests or up to our
expectations. If our third-party service providéesnot perform as expected, as highlighted in reperss reports concerning certain
foreclosure proceedings and investigations, ouiniess, financial condition and results of operagiand ability to make distributions to our
shareholders may be materially adversely affected.
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ltem 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibits:

The exhibits required by this item are set fortttlma Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Description
Number
3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chintievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1he Company’s

Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Forbi $File No. 333-145525) filed on September 2Q7226nd
incorporated herein by referenc

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentpgwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company'sgert on Form 8-K
filed on May 28, 2009 and incorporated hereindference
3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Comya Registration

Statement on Amendment No. 2 to Form S-11 (File383-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and inccajed herein
by reference

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimexestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s
Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Forbi $File No. 333-145525) filed on September 2Q722nd
incorporated herein by referenc

31.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, CHi@iancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant tet®a 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Entiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 9€6&darban«Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, Chidiancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant toll8.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docume

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created

Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docume

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Docum

* Submitted electronically herewith. Attachediashibit 101 to this report are the following docurteformatted in XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidatedetants of Financial Condition at September 30, Z0&udited) and December 31, 2(
(Derived from the audited consolidated statemeifinaicial condition at December 31, 2009); (ii)rSolidated Statements of Operations
Comprehensive Income (Unaudited) for the quartedsrene months ended September 30, 2010 and 2@p@dnsolidated Statements of
Stockholders' Equity (Unaudited) for the nine menginded September 30, 2010 and 2009; (iv) Consetidatatements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited) for the nine months ended Septembe?2@D) and 2009; and (v) Notes to Consolidated FiahStatements (Unaudited) for the
quarter ended September 30, 2010. Users of thasalla advised pursuant to Rule 406T of Regul&idnthat this interactive data file is
deemed not filed or part of a registration statenoemrospectus for purposes of sections 11 orf1BeoSecurities Act of 1933, is deemed not
filed for purposes of section 18 of the Securitiad Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is notesaihp liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetimen duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew Lambiase

Matthew Lambias:
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
November 1, 201

By: /s/ A. Alexandra Denahan

A. Alexandra Denaha

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer)

November 1, 201
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleadir
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjy@nd other financial information included ifstteport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being preparec

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenadsurance regarding the reliability of finaneigporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presédntéhis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegpeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thgistrants internal control over financial reporting thatoaed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrargt’internal control over financial reportil
and

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@uaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrand’ ability to record, process, summarize and rt
financial information; ani

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significdatin the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: November 1, 201

/sl Matthew Lambiase

Matthew Lambias:

Title

Chief Executive Officer and President (Principal
Executive Officer,




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, A. Alexandra Denahan, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleadir
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjy@nd other financial information included ifstteport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officerdanare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being preparec

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenadsurance regarding the reliability of finaneigporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presédntéhis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegpeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thgistrants internal control over financial reporting thatoaed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrargt’internal control over financial reportil
and

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@uaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlgrofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the registrars’ ability to record, process, summarize
report financial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significd@tin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: November 1, 201
/sl A. Alexandra Denahan
A. Alexandra Denaha

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended

September 30, 2010 to be filed with Securities Brchange Commission on or about the date hereef‘Rbport”), I, Matthew Lambiase,

President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarka@&ley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly ets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1

Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deemédxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambiase

Matthew Lambias:
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
November 1, 201




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended

September 30, 2010 to be filed with Securities Brchange Commission on or about the date hereef‘Rbport”),l, A. Alexandra Denaha

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Comparertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaDekey Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly ets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deemédxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/sl A. Alexandra Denahan

A. Alexandra Denaha
Chief Financial Officel
November 1, 201




